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Exceptional IP starts with
exceptional people




QANTM Intellectual Property Limited -
(ASX:QIP) is the owner of leading intellectual ‘_ =3
property (IP) businesses operating in Australia, ~ " * "%
New Zealand, Singapore, Malaysia and the B
United Kingdom under the key brands —

Davies Collison Cave Pty Ltd (DCC), FPA gt
Patent Attorneys Pty Ltd (FPA), Cotters Patent '
and Trade Mark Attorneys (Cotters), Advanz A
Fidelis IP Sdn Bhd (ADVANZ), Sortify.tm Ltd ‘
(including Sortify's brands - DIY Trademarks, ™«
Trademarks Online and Trademark Planet), #i-
as well as an IP business advisory joint g

venture, ipervescence Pty Ltd. e
-

The businesses offer their clients a suite of services

associated with the creation, protection, commercialisation,

enforcement and management of IP rights. Members hh
of the Group have offices in Sydney, Melbourne, Brisbane 3 .
and various regional centres in Australia, Wellington I -
and Auckland in New Zealand, Singapore and Kuala
Lumpur in Malaysia. .

i

The QANTM Group businesses have a strong track record
in providing IP services to a broad range of Australian and -

international clients, ranging from start-up technology )
businesses to Fortune 500 multinationals, public research
institutions and universities.

Kuala Lumpur
Singapore

With the acquisition of Sortify.tm in
October 2021, the QANTM Group has
grown to employ over 370 people across
five countries, with offices in seven cities

: and in various regional centres.
Brisbane

Sydney «
Melbourne

New Zealand



DAVIES
COLLISON
CAVE

Davies Collison Cave (DCC) - one

of Asia Pacific’s largest and longest
established patent and trade marks
attorney firms. DCC Law is Australia’s
leading specialist IP law firm and
provides the full specturm of IP related
legal services.

@ Sortify.tm

Sortify.tm Ltd — A New Zealand-
headquartered trade mark legal
technology company, Sortify.tm
provides Al-powered technology
solutions, including online
trademark registration platforms

in Australia, New Zealand and the
UK, and productivity tools for trade

marks attorneys and lawyers. Sortify.

tm became part of the QANTM
Group in October 2021.

CONTENTS

The QANTM Group

2021 Year in Review
Chairman and CEO Report
2021 Business Review
People and Culture

Board of Directors

FPA

Patent
Attorneys

FPA Patent Attorneys (FPA) — an
Australian-based patent attorney
practice with expertise in patent

and design filing, prosecution and
oppositions in Australia, New Zealand
and South East Asia.
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Patent & Trade Mark Attorneys

Cotters Patent and Trade Mark
Attorneys (Cotters) — established
in 2008 by patent attorneys with
extensive experience in large patent
attorney practices in Australia and
Europe.
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Advanz Fidelis IP Sdn Bhd (Advanz)
— established in 2000, Advanz
provides IP prosecution and advisory
practice services in Malaysia, with
clients in other parts of Asia, as well
as Europe and the United States.
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property advisory business, offering

IP consultancy and flexible resourcing
services.
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2021
YEAR IN REVIEW

Strong business and portfolio performance

— QANTM business entities have continued to
perform exceptionally well under continued
challenges of COVID.

— Continued revenue growth across main
business areas of patents and trade marks,
albeit with softer second half
for legal/litigation.

— Material growth in Group and Australia
patent applications — applications at post-
listing highs; favourable indicator for future
revenue generation.

— DCC and FPA delivered growth in patent
market share in Australia '

— DCC retained number 1 market position in
Australian trade mark filings.

— Earnings impacted by adverse EX movement,

year-on-year.

— Strong underlying cash flow, balance sheets
and business performance.

— Full year dividend of 7.4 cents (representing
85% of NPATA).

Investment in People and Clients

— Continued focus on support for
our people; emphasis on flexibility
and wellness.

— Investments in growth and business
development: DCC US sales office,
others in train.

— Implementing world-class client
engagement platform.

Strategic Initiatives

— Technology modetnisation: foundatigns
established, HR an‘i Finance platforms

underway, case manageément and CRM
solutions short-listed.
— Continued progreé&,on A pipeline

development, strong momentum building
around several opportuniti

Group Business Highlights

Revenue Analysis?*

G,

Patent
Service Charges

3.5%

$64.3m vs $62.1m

GROUP PATENT
applications up

11.0%

Highest level
since QANTM
listing

(FY20: 3.1%)

QANTM
AUSTRALIAN
TRADE MARK

filings up

8.0%

$15.8m vs $15.7m

AUSTRALIAN
PATENT
applications up

9.7%

Versus market
growth of 2.4%

Trade Marks?

QANTM
AUSTRALIAN
TRADE MARK

MARKET SHARE

of

()
10.5%
DCC retains
leadership
position
amongst top
10 filers
(FY20: 10.9%)

Legal/Litigation

Legal/Litigation
service charges
down

QANTM
AUSTRALIAN
PATENT MARKET
SHARE of

15.8%

(FY20: 14.7%)

TOTAL GROUP
TRADE MARK
filings down

7.6%

mainly
associated
with lower
Asian filings
(Malaysian
COVID-related
restrictions).

» Lower service charge contribution, mainly
reflects softer 2H21 following completion
of several litigation cases.

* DCC Law maintains strong case pipeline.

NOTE:

! Internal management analysis.

2 Internal management analysis and analysis of IP Australia Data.
5 DCC, FPA and AFIP management analysis including IRDA cases.




Financial Highlights

$119.1
million
)

NET PROFIT
AFTER TAX

$12.2
million

DOWN 9.6%
‘ (FY20: $13.5 MILLION)

$16.2
million

SERVICE CHARGE
REVENUE

$92.4
million
f (FY20: $90.3 MILLION)

$68.4
million
. )

$27.2
million
\ 2

OPERATING
CASH FLOW

$19.8
million
f (FY20: $15.1 MILLION)

FULL YEAR
DIVIDENDS OF

/.4 cents

FULLY FRANKED
UP 4.2%

(FY20: 7.1 CENTS)

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA



FROM THE
CHAIRMAN AND CEO

During the 2021 Financial
Year, substantial progress was
made in the implementation

of the Group'’s key strategic
initiatives, with our people,
their personal welfare and
professional development
.* atthe core of all we do.

4 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

At QANTM, we see intellectual
property, innovation and creativity
as the cornerstones of modern
economies. QANTM's vision is to
work with the world’s greatest
innovators and help develop,
protect and commercialise

their ideas.

The QANTM business model is based on the professional
strength and leading market positions of its core
intellectual property businesses. Created from the
combination of DCC and FPA Patent Attorneys, two of
Australia’s leading [P practices, QANTM has progressively
expanded into Asia, with DCC and FPA's Singapore offices
supplemented in 2018 by the acquisition of Advanz
Fidelis IP. The inclusion in 2020 of the Cotters business
has broadened QANTM's intellectual property service
offering, and the acquisition in October 2021 of Sortify.
tm, a New Zealand based trade mark legal technology
firm, subsequent to the end of the financial year, adds
yet another key dimension to the capabilities and service
offering the Group brings to its clients in the intellectual
property sector in Australia, New Zealand

and internationally.

Business operations in FY21

The QANTM Group performed exceptionally well under
the extended challenges of COVID-19 this year, with
continued revenue growth across patents and trade marks,
albeit with a marginally lower financial contribution from
legal and litigation services after the two strong prior years.

The Group continued to achieve material growth in
patent applications. With services through the patent
life-cycle being the main source of Group revenues,

this will serve QANTM well as a basis for future year
revenues. Despite earnings being lower due to adverse
currency movements, COVID-19 related restrictions and
investments in our future operating model, operating cash
flow remained strong. The Group's balance sheet position
is robust and QANTM was able to award shareholders a
higher fully franked dividend than the previous year, at the
top end of the payout ratio range in our dividend policy.



Richard EnglandiNon-Executive Chair

This year's performance attests to the market, client

and industry sector strengths of the QANTM Group.
Associated with the planned investments we are making
in the business — as part of our key strategic initiatives —
employees, clients and shareholders can have confidence
in the industry competitiveness and growth opportunities
available to our business.

Business transformation process

During the 2021 Financial Year, substantial progress was
made in the implementation of the Group's key strategic
initiatives, with our people, their personal welfare and
professional development at the core of all we do.

QANTM's strategic initiatives recognise that fundamental
transformation is necessary to underpin QANTM’s
positioning and growth as an emerging global IP

service provider.

It is essential to retain and attract the best IP professionals,

through appropriate remuneration, strong emphasis

on a collegiate and inclusive culture and investing in
professional development for our people. Our explicit
intent is that the QANTM businesses are regarded as the
best place to work for IP professionals.

Excellence and efficiency in client servicing remains the
foundation of all we do. It is recognised that IP services in
the future may be delivered through a variety of different
— and possibly quite radically different — means. Clients
requiring IP services will have increasingly varying needs.
Likewise, business development activities will evolve from
the conventional methods of the past.

Craig Dower,,CEO and Managing Director

IP

i
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Activities related to growth and scale form a key part

of QANTM's broader geographical diversification goals,
with attendant access to new markets, new clients,

as well as adjacent business offerings. Successful activity
in these areas will generate new revenue streams,
strengthening the financial performance of the business.
In turn, this provides capacity for further re-investment
in the business.

The investment in processes and technology, as well as
the development of the broader professional capabilities
— commercial, technical and leadership — of our people
are part of ensuring that QANTM has the appropriate
architecture for the continued evolution and competitive
growth in its business model.

The QANTM board and management recognise that, as
a publicly listed company, our obligation to shareholders
is paramount. It is further recognised that the business
model must remain responsive and competitive — and
where appropriate differentiated from others — in light
of changing market conditions. As would be expected
of an intellectual property company, a good deal of
effort and thought has gone into analysing the business
environment and competitive horizons as well as
understanding key enablers for organisational success.
QANTM's strategic initiatives reflect the outcome of

this work, based as they are on the fundamentals of
our people and excellence in client servicing.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 5



FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Strategic Initiatives

People

As has been continuously conveyed, our people are at the
core of the QANTM Group.

This year's Annual Report contains details of the range of
initiatives undertaken and under way related to support
of our people. We are continuing to ensure that we have
a holistic and sophisticated approach to advancing the
interests and careers of our people. An emphasis on
flexibility in workplace arrangements, associated with

a deep concern with psychological and physical health,
has included investments in technology to facilitate
remote working arrangements, as well as a range of
other initiatives.

Investment in skills and professional capabilities remains
a priority. During the year QANTM’s on-line learning
platform, 1Q" was launched, while processes are in place
for professional development and succession planning.
Alignment to cultural values, high levels of retention and
attraction of some exciting new talent, as well as further
progress on the diversity of the workforce, are highly
encouraging trends.

66 The continual investment in
our people and culture is at
the heart of all that we do.
The QANTM Group, though
its separate business entities,
seeks to attract and retain
the very best people in the

industry. 99
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Technology

It was conveyed at the 2020 AGM of the company that it
was our assessment that technology platforms in place for
the IP industry were no longer suitable in a global modern
context. It remains our view that without the appropriate
investment in updated systems, with open AP, data
analytics, security and mobility, an IP company risks
becoming marginalised or disintermediated.

QANTM, across all of its businesses, is well-advanced in
upgrading systems. We have focused on partnering with
global leaders, including Microsoft, SAP, Oracle, Fujitsu and
app developers such as Culture Amp. The providers we
have engaged with are industry leaders and their support
will serve as the foundation for implementing upgraded
IP management and customer relationship management
platforms. Human resources and financial management
systems are expected to be implemented during this fiscal
year, as well as a hybrid information technology systems
model. Furthermore an IP diagnostic process is underway,
which will assist us in optimising a range of activities
across patent and trade mark services, as well as enhance
practice management systems for our legal and litigation
team.

Business Processes

A key element of the overall technology program is the
opportunity it provides to effect a major improvement

in our business processes, by automating, streamlining
and ultimately eliminating some redundant or low

value processes. Work has commenced to automate

a significant amount of the manual processing and
spreadsheet reconciliation work typical of conventional
IP processes. This includes the establishment of shared
services capability in Malaysia, which will reduce cost and
improve efficiency.

A business analytics capability has been established
which is expected to play a key role in market, competitor
and client analysis, improvement in internal business

and management reporting, as well as commercial and
strategic decision-making. The Group has implemented
an enhanced risk and compliance framework, with tools
to identify, assess and manage risk across all parts of the
business.



Clients

A common and unifying part of the culture across

the Group remains a focus on excellence in client
engagement and servicing. Clients in the IP area are
increasingly demanding deeper insights from and
collaboration with external service providers, to grow their
business and maintain their own competitive advantage.
An intellectual property firm with the requisite professional
capabilities and modern systems, is in a privileged
situation to develop this ongoing, deeper relationship.

As such, at QANTM we have continued to evolve our
approaches to client planning and engagement of means
to add value to our clients. In this, as with other areas we
have been prepared to adapt and apply methodologies
and solutions from recognised advisers. This has included
working with global organisational consulting firm, Korn
Ferry, to develop and implement a comprehensive client
engagement methodology. Completed on a pilot scale,
this is now being implemented across the Group. We

are already observing the benefits of a more structured,
targeted and disciplined approach to client engagement
and business development and the expectation is that this
will continue.

QANTM, across all of its
businesses, is well-advanced
in upgrading systems. We
have focused on partnering
with global leaders, including
Microsoft, SAP, Oracle, Fujitsu
and app developers such as
Culture Amp.

IP

Growth and Scale

QANTM is pursing various organic bases for growth,
building upon the expertise and franchise that has been
built across our business entities. We believe that with
the right technology, processes and client management
tools — as well as the professional development of our
people — this remains a core part of our future success.
We continue to invest in growth in a variety of

forms, reflected during the 2021 financial year by the
establishment of a sales presence in the United States
for DCC, with other such initiatives in train.

QANTM has conveyed a focus on identifying appropriate
MEA opportunities and appointed a dedicated executive
to focus upon this area, as well as risk and the capital
management structure of the Group.

Momentum has built in this area with a number of
opportunities at an advanced stage of evaluation. On

1 September 2021, QANTM announced the acquisition
of the New Zealand based trade mark and legal tech
company, Sortify.tm. Sortify.tm holds a leading position
in New Zealand and Australia in 'DIY’ and on-line trade
mark filing platforms and has launched an automated
United Kingdom trade mark filing platform. Sortify.tm
has also developed a suite of trade IP productivity tools,
incorporating artificial intelligence and various forms of
automation, which are being used by trade mark attorney
and law firms globally to assist with trade mark practices.

The acquisition is strategically and financially appealing
for QANTM. It provides an exposure to a high growth,
‘disruptive’ part of the IP sector; Sortify.tm's suite of
IT-based tools will contribute value to QANTM's
technology modernisation program; and there are
further growth opportunities in the Asia-Pacific region.
Sortify.tm is a high-growth, customer focused business
that highly values its people, and this is a very exciting
development for QANTM. We are thrilled to welcome
Sortify.tm as part of the QANTM team.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 7



Your board of directors had an intense year, with
activity on several fronts. Support and advice
was provided to management in relation to the
business transformation measures, including
further organisational adaptation to remote
working arrangements under COVID-19 challenges;
a continued focus upon measures to facilitate
organisational and cultural evolution; as well as
investments in business systems and processes.
Directors worked with management in reviewing
several acquisition opportunities, with detailed
evaluation given to the Sortify.tm business case.
This acquisition was approved and finalised
subsequent to the end of the financial year.

Despite the multiple work streams, continued focus
was given to the evolution of Board capabilities and
skills. As conveyed in the 2020 Annual Report, a
Board review identified some of the requisite skills
and experiences considered appropriate for the next
stages of QANTM's business and portfolio evolution,
including not least growth in the Asian region.
Recently, an external consultant has been retained to
assist the Board in relation to Board composition.

This process is being undertaken in the context of
my intention to retire as Chair of QANTM in the first
half of calendar year 2022. Sonia Petering, who has
served as an independent non-executive director
since June 2016, will succeed me as Chair. Sonia
will provide a continuity of board experience both in

FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

the context of my retirement and the retirement in
the past 12 months of two non-executive directors,

as well as the likely appointment of two new non-
executive directors. Sonia understands the business,
she has a productive working relationship with our
CEO, Craig Dower, and has also established strong
relationships with the managing principals of our
business entities. Importantly, Sonia understands our
primary obligation is to our shareholders, but that we
create shareholder value by ensuring we have clients
who seek out our services and recommend us to their
peers and colleagues, team members who are highly
engaged and suppliers who want to work with us to
build our business. As an experienced public company
Chair and non-executive director, Sonia is well placed
to lead the Board over QANTM's next phase.

During the year, two of QANTM's non-executive
directors retired from the Board - Abigail Cheadle
retired at the conclusion of the 2020 AGM, while in
May 2021, Cameron Judson retired, and is focusing
on a full time chief executive role. Both directors had
served the company since June 2016, with Abigail
serving as Chair of the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee and Cameron as the Chair of the People,
Remuneration and Culture Committee. On behalf

of my fellow directors and shareholders I wish to
extend our thanks to Abigail and Cameron for their
valuable services and commitment to the interests of
employees, clients and shareholders of QANTM.

We trust that this Report is informative in conveying the progress we are making and the work in train. We thank our
employees for their commitment and support; our clients for their confidence in our ability to fulfil their business,
creative and technical needs and our shareholders for their confidence in the value opportunities that reside with

an investment in QANTM Intellectual Property.

8 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

Craig Dower
CEO and
Managing Director

Richard England
Non-executive
Chairman



Business and Financial Highlights

The 2021 Financial Year business and financial outcomes
reflected the strength of QANTM's businesses, despite
the adverse influence on reported results of an AUD/USD
exchange rate which was 11 per cent higher than the
previous financial year, and a lower contribution from
Advanz Fidelis associated with extended COVID-19
related business restrictions in Malaysia.

The key features of business performance included
material growth in both overall total and Australian patent
applications (which constitute 58 per cent of QANTM's
total), increasing 11 per cent and 9.7 per cent respectively.
Patent application levels are at their highest since QANTM
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange in 2016, a
favourable indicator for future revenue generation given
the extended life cycle revenue characteristics associated
with patent application, prosecution, and advisory work.

QANTM's patent market share in Australia has increased
from 14.7 per cent to 15.8 per cent; again the highest level
since the listing of the company

Asian patent applications increased by 14 per cent and
now constitute 14 per cent of the Group total, with Asia
constituting 6 per cent of Group revenue. This outcome
understates the potential otherwise available, as it was
achieved in the face of severe COVID-19 related business
restrictions in Malaysia.

Trade mark filings in Australia (which constitute 53 per
cent of the Group total) increased by 8 per cent, with
Group trade mark filings declining by 7.6 per cent, mainly
associated with the business environment for Advanz
Fidelis. DCC maintained its leading firm market share
position in the Australian market.

IP

Service charges across the three main service delivery
areas of the business increased by 2.3 per cent. If account
is taken of the adverse impact of foreign exchange, the
increase would have been 13.6 per cent. The dampening
impact of foreign exchange flowed through to reported
earnings. Patents service charges increased 3.5 per cent;
trade marks by 0.7 per cent, while legal service charges
declined marginally, down 1.6 per cent, in the context

of two strong prior years.

Total revenue increased by 2.1 per cent to $119.1 million
(2020: $116.6 million) and net revenue increased by
1.7 per cent to $95.6 million (2020: $94.0 million).

Operating expenditure in 2021 was 3.5 per cent higher

at $68.4 million (2020: $66.1 million), mainly associated
with an increase in employee benefit costs, including the
first full year inclusion of remuneration costs for Cotters;
expenditure associated with the establishment of a United
States sales office for DCC; and investment in corporate
resources and technology, partially offset by lower other
costs, including travel

Underlying EBITDA (after FX) declined by 3.7 per cent
to $26.1 million (2020: $27.1 million).

Statutory NPAT increased by 11 per cent to $10.4 million
(2020: $9.4 million)

QANTM's balance sheet is strong, with the acquisition
of Sortify funded by debt and with capacity for future
acquisitions as we pursue further M&A opportunities.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 9



DCC - Asia Pacific Patent
and Trade Marks Attorney Firm

People
2,35 < 80
Prmc1pals m “ Fee Earners

Qualified Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys
(many with dual-qualified law degrees)

®

Patents Trade Marks

Formed

1877

Melbourne, Sydney, Brisbane, Singapore,
New Zealand

9 DCC Awards

— |AM Strategy 300 2021 - The World's Leading IP
Strategists — David Webber, Susanne Hantos and
Jack Shan.

— P Stars 2020 - Fourteen of our attorneys were
recognised in the 2020 edition Managing Intellectual
Property’s listing of IP Stars.

— Who's Who Legal: Australia 2020 — Thirteen of our
Principals were recognised in the 4th Edition of
Who's Who Legal: Australian in key practice areas
of Data, Life Sciences, Patents and Trademarks.
— asialaw Profiles 2017-2020 — Ranked as
‘Outstanding’

— Marion Heathcote ranked among the Top 250

Women in IP in the 2021 edition of Managing IP

— WTR 1000, 2020:

— Tier 1 Prosecution and Strategy;

— Eleven of our Principals were recognised in
WTR 1000 rankings in areas of ‘Prosecution
and Strategy’, ‘Enforcement and Litigation’,
and Transactions’.

10 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

Excellence through collegiality

DCC - Intellectual Property Leaders
across Asia Pacific

Established in Australia more than a century ago, Davies
Collison Cave (DCC) is one of Asia Pacific's largest and
longest established patent and trade marks attorney firms.
DCC provides Intellectual Property (IP) services across the
Asia Pacific region.

DCC is committed to engaging with its clients to obtain an
understanding of each client’s strategic IP requirements in
the context of that client’s business. This ensures that DCC's
advice is not only technically excellent, but also aligns with
each client’s IP and broader commercial objectives.

DCC provides expert advice relating to patents, trade
marks, domain names, plant rights, registered designs and
trade secrets.

DCC's patent attorneys have technical expertise that
covers all industry sectors, including:

— Engineering and manufacturing

— Electrical and electronic engineering

— Building and construction

— Food and beverages

— Agriculture and agribusiness

— Mining and resources

— Fashion, architecture and design

— Chemical and materials engineering

— Nanotechnology

— Clean technology and energy

— Biotechnology and pharmaceuticals

— Arts, marketing and media

— ICT and software

— Medical technology and devices

— Universities and research

DCC's trade mark group comprises some of the most
experienced Trade Marks Attorneys in Australia, New
Zealand and Singapore. The trade mark group specialises

in a holistic range of services to assist in protecting the
brand identity of its clients.



hris Jorflan, Managing

I Pringipal Law

Davies Collison Cave Law — Leaders in
Australian IP Legal Services

Davies Collison Cave Law (DCCL) is Australia’s leading
specialist intellectual property law firm, and provides

a complete range of IP related and commercial legal
services. DCCL specialises in strategic analysis, protection,
enforcement and commercialisation & licensing of all
aspects of IP, as well as providing an extensive commercial
law offering.

DCCL's key service areas are:

— IP and Commercial Dispute Resolution and Litigation
— I[P Strategy Advice

— Trade Secrets and Data Protection

— Copyright

— Commercialisation and Licensing

— Private Wealth and Succession

— Corporate, Commercial, Property and Tax

— Technology, Media and Telecommunications

DCC and DCCL's People

In addition to its focus on excellence, DCC and DCCL
differentiate themselves from other IP firms through the
importance they place on their people and collegiate
culture. This people focus is exemplified by the extensive
modification to staff working arrangements that

took place during COVID to ensure staff welfare and
engagement. DCC is committed to maintaining a healthy,
engaged, and inclusive workplace through the delivery
of company-wide initiatives with a focus on diversity,
inclusion and belonging.

DCC'’s Attorneys and DCCL's lawyers are among the most
academically qualified and experienced IP specialists in
the country. They are experienced in a broad range of
science and technology backgrounds with established
technical, as well as legal skills. DCC recruits only the
brightest professionals, supports them with highly trained
administrative staff, and utilises sophisticated technology
and management systems.

IP

DAVIES
COLLISON
CAVE LAW

DCC Law - Australian specialist IP
and Commercial Law Firm

People
% 8 & 29
" Principals ain aim Fee Earners

Qualified Lawyers
(many with dual-qualified science degrees)

R

=
Law

Formed

1985

Melbourne, Sydney, Brisbane

9 Recent Awards

Best Lawyers 14th Edition (2020)

— DCCL recognised (Leading Specialist IP Law firm)
— 16 DCCL Principals and lawyers recognised
Who's Who Legal: Australia (2020) - 5 DCCL

Principals recognised (Life Sciences, Patents
and Data)

IAM Patent 1000 (2021) - DCCL recognised
(Patent Litigation and Transactions)

Managing Intellectual Property (2021) -
4 DCCL Principals recognised (Patent Litigation
and Transactions)

WTR 1000 (2020) - 3 DCCL Principals recognised
(Enforcement & Litigation and Transactions)

Doyle's Guide (2020)

— DCCL recognised (Contentious IP, Non-
Contentious IP and TMT - NSW, Vic and Qld)

— 6 DCCL Principals recognised (IP and
Commercial)

Global Law Experts (2020) - DCCL recognised
(IP & Licencing Law Firm of the Year)
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2021 BUSINESS REVIEW

O
@ lpervescence

Focusing on IP as
a material business
asset, aligned to

commercial

strategy and risk ,
Kareén Halléstein and
frameworks. Jane Péfier
-

ipervescence is an intellectual property business advisory
firm offering IP consultancy and flexible resourcing services,
to help drive competitive advantage and growth for
clients. ipervescence was formed in 2019, and is a joint
venture between QANTM and the founding Managing
Principals — Karen Hallenstein and Jane Perrier. iperves-
cence provides IP consultancy services that support
strategic planning and decision making, resourcing,
collaboration, risk management and business continuity,
including: — IP strategy; risk and compliance; culture
and capability; policy and law reform; and valuation. ip-
ervescence also provides flexible IP resourcing solutions,
with a team of IP specialists of all levels of experience,
available to work on flexible contracts at client premises
or remotely, to support business continuity, promote an
IP culture and enhance IP capability and competency.

IP Advisory

Melbourne

— Winner — International Advisory Experts Award
in category of IP (Australia) 2021

— Finalist - Lawyers Weekly Australian Law Awards
in category of IP Team of the Year 2020 and 2021

— Finalist - Women in Law Awards in category of
Boutique Diversity Firm of the Year 2020

— Nominated — APAC Legal Awards 2021

— Inclusion of both co-founders in IAM Strategy 300:
The World's Leading IP Strategists 2021.

12 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

We believe in empathy
before insights

®

Patents

Melbourne, Sydney, Singapore

Australian Patent Prosecution Firm of the Year
2021 by Managing Intellectual Property (MIP)

Tier 1 ranking for Australian Patent Prosecution
by MIP

Principals Karen Bentley, Chris Bird, Daneta
Crump and John Dower named by MIP as
Patent Stars

MIP names Daneta Crump in the Top 250
Women in IP

Ranked Highly Recommended for Patent
Prosecution in Australia by IAM Patent 1000

Karen Bentley, Chris Bird, Daneta Crump, Adam
Denley, John Dower, Carl Harrap, Stuart Irvine
recognised by IAM Patent 100 for expertise in
Australia

Desmond Tan recognised by IAM Patent 100

for expertise in Singapore

Stuart Irvine and Desmond Tan named as
Strategy 300 Global Leaders by IAM

Karen Bentley, Daneta Crump and Tracey Hendy
named Powerful Women in IP by World IP Forum

Leading Specialists in Patent Prosecution —
South East Asia by APAC Insider.



IP

" 4

FPA Principals: ChriSg8lkd, Karen Bentley; Daneta Crumpiane Ada‘r";l Denley

FPA Patent Attorneys has an exclusive focus on patents
and designs, and a reputation for excellence and success-
fully delivering on the diverse requirements of its clients.

With a team of 30 patent attorneys and 40 business
service personnel, FPA has the professionalism, expertise
and experience necessary for the delivery of a range of
intellectual property services, including those necessary
for innovative and disruptive technologies. FPA believes
that the patent attorney relationship involves becoming
an integral part of a client’s business. This enables

better identification of risks and opportunities for an
organisation’s IP requirements. As such, FPA specialises
in understanding its clients’ commercial interests and
implementing patent examination strategies aligned with
those commercial interests. FPA seeks to provide clients
with more than a standard approach; it seeks to ensure

a commercial context and to deliver bespoke solutions
that truly add value. FPA people think laterally and are
prepared to invest time and intellectual effort in the client
relationship and in understanding a client’s business.

Internationally, FPA has a diverse client base, including
multinational corporations. Domestically, as recognition
of its expertise, FPA acts for a range of organisations,
including major Australian universities seeking to secure
protection for their research. As a top tier firm with
offices in Australia and South East Asia, FPA specialises
in understanding innovative global industries and the
burgeoning and increasingly important South East Asian
patent market. The firm invests time in understanding
its clients as individual organisations to provide expert
advice on the creation, management, enforcement and
commercialisation of patents and designs throughout
South East Asia.

FPA's team maintains a common vision of providing an
exceptional experience to its clients and to each other.
FPA's attorneys and staff work collaboratively within client
groups, across the firm, sharing their unique skill sets. FPA
operates with an inclusive culture, valuing all opinions
and facilitating the sharing of ideas and the promotion of
teaching and learning.

FPA is committed to excellence in everything it does. This
is manifested in its premium client base which includes
the world's leading brands and technologies across
multiple industries including:

— Mining and resources

— Energy

— Pharmaceuticals

— Biotechnology

— Agribusiness and agrochemical

— Industrial chemistry

— Food, beverages and FMCG

— Building, construction and civil engineering
— Medical technologies

— Analytical instrumentation

— Mechanical engineering and manufacturing
— Information and communication technologies
— Electronics and electrical engineering

— Chemical and materials engineering

— Consumer products and design

— Physics

People

FPA invests deeply in its people and believes it has the
right mix of people, as well as diversity of thinking across
the firm, to deliver outstanding client outcomes. FPA
patent attorneys have a depth of expertise, educational
qualifications and proven records of involvement in their
clients’ industries. Many FPA attorneys have worked in
industry or undertaken post-doctoral research prior to
entering the patent attorney profession. FPA attorneys
focus on, and specialise in, their specific technologies and
industries. FPA has particular success in obtaining patents
in Australia in the computing / data processing and
biotechnology fields.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 13



2021 BUSINESS REVIEW

ADVANZ FIDELIS

PATENTS TRADEMARKS COPYRIGHT INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS

Commited to excellence in

everything it does

— 9 |-|.Ih.ll
Debbie David Siew Ling
CEO Supervisor - Patents Department Head - Advisory

People

3 214

20
"‘ Principals .?. .?. Fee Earners

® ©

Patents Trade Marks [P Advisory

Formed

2000

Kuala Lumpur
Recent Awards

— WTR1000 2021 Recommended Firm and
Individual

— [AM Patent 1000 2021 Recommended Firm
and Individual

— [AM Strategy 300 2021 Recommended
Individual

— Asia IP Ranked Firm and IP Expert

14 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Advanz Fidelis IP (Advanz) is a leading incorporated
intellectual property prosecution and advisory practice
operating in Malaysia. Advanz has been a member of the
QANTM Group since July 2018. It represents QANTM's

first acquisition in Asia and, as such, forms an important
foundation for the Group's growth objectives in the region.

Advanz offers integrated IP services in patents, trade
marks, copyright, industrial design and intellectual
property prosecution and advisory work. Established

in 2000, Advanz has a spread of clients in Malaysia and
other parts of the world including Asia, Europe and the
United States providing a full range of intellectual property
services, including:

— identification of IP assets

— development and protection of IP assets

— development and exploitation of existing IP rights

— management of IP assets

— dispute resolution

— [P education and training

— IP commercialisation, including providing access to
potential investors and commercialisation partners

People

The team at Advanz is focused on their philosophy of the
integration of intellectual property and business strategies.

An integrated approach to IP allows Advanz to be more
pro-active and protective, yet strategic, in managing an IP
portfolio for better business results, and thus optimises the
use of a client’s valuable time and resources.



COTTERS

Patent & Trade Mark Attorneys

Clear and concise intellectual
property advice

People
80 4 &
" Principals .?.+.’. Fee Earners

® ®

Patents Trade Marks

Founded

2008

Sydney
Recent Awards

— Dr Kieran Williams has been recognised in the
IAM Patent 1000 as one of Australia’s leading
patent attorneys and by [P STARS (Managing
IP) as a Notable Practitioner. Additionally he
is a member of the Asian Patent Attorney
Association's Patent Committee.

— Chris Atichian is currently serving as a council
member for FICPI Australia, and is the current
treasurer. He also is a member of the Asian
Patent Attorney Association’s Emerging Rights
Committee.

IP

Managing'Prin€ipals: Chris Atichian and Marc'us Dalton.

Australia and New Zealand

Cotters was established in 2008 by patent attorneys with
extensive experience in large patent attorney practices
in Australia and Europe. Since then, Cotters has grown
to become an established presence in the Australian and
New Zealand patent profession, handling patent, trade
mark and design portfolios for a wide range of clients.

Cotters is a specialist patent and trade mark prosecution
firm. Its patent and trade mark attorneys are registered

to practise before both the Australian and New Zealand
IP Offices. Cotters specialises in preparing, filing and
prosecuting patent, registered design, and trade mark
applications, providing validity and infringement opinions
on registered IP rights, IP due diligence advice and
assisting in IP litigation matters before the Federal Court
of Australia and the High Court of New Zealand. For local
clients, Cotters also manages their international patent,
design, and trade mark portfolios throughout the world,
and has close associations with foreign firms in all major
international jurisdictions.

Cotters is committed to providing high quality
professional work at competitive prices. Their patent

and trade mark attorneys pride themselves on their
accessibility, responsiveness, diligence and dedication to
achieving the best possible result for clients. The majority
of the firm's work is conducted on a fixed fee basis, which
provides clients with the comfort of cost certainty.

People

Cotters’ patent attorneys have technical qualifications,
industry experience and expertise in obtaining patents
across all the engineering and science fields. All of Cotters
patent attorneys have over a decade’s experience, and
their clients can be assured that their patent portfolios are
in secure hands.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 15



Siti Adah: member of the Advanz Fidelis Finance
and Administration team

16 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED

During the 2021 Financial Year, QANTM truly transformed
our approach to how we work with a hybrid working
model. We introduced new virtual platforms and tools,
empowering our people to maintain connection to one
another and continually develop and learn new skills
along the way, albeit largely through a screen.

We have also transformed our focus on wellbeing through
a number of different avenues, which has proven critical
to all businesses within the QANTM Group. We planned
for a safe and considered return to the workplace tailored
to each locale. Each return plan took into consideration
the wellbeing needs and preferences of our people, safety
protocols, technology requirements, office configuration,
and client considerations. Examples include check-in
applications, communication of exposure sites to our
people, temperature checks, booking systems to manage
capacity limits, deep cleans, sanitisation stations, and
social distancing measures. A Cross Functional Response
Team was established to manage COVID related matters
across the entire Group.

We are proud of our ongoing focus on our people

and we were delighted to be recognised as finalists in
the Australian Financial Review “Best Places to Work”
Competition. Our people rated us highly in the following
categories:

— Purpose (seeking to make valuable contributions to
people and society)

— Wellbeing (prioritising mental health, promoting
sustainable working norms and encouraging smart
work practices)

— Equality (creating an environment that promotes
diversity, fosters inclusivity and removes bias)

Pleasingly, 84% of our people believe that the mental
health of our employees is a priority for our organisation.

74% of our people believe that QANTM promotes diversity,
fosters inclusion and removes bias. Our Diversity and
Inclusion committees are continuously improving our
practices and programs in these areas and embedding a
culture whereby all have a sense of belonging. To ensure
that we keep focus on improving, we regularly survey our
people to see how we are tracking in these areas.

Our Learning and Development programs are best in

class and support our people to grow both professionally
and personally. We are implementing a Human Resource
Information System which will enable full integration of all
people processes across our Group, with a strong focus on
talent management and career progression and pathways
for our people.
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE

QANTM introduced a range
of holistic initiatives to
support our people’'s mental
health and wellbeing. This
has proven to be particularly
critical during COVID, as we
targeted our programs to be
location specific and focused
WELLBEING on the individual impact
of the pandemic. Some of
these initiatives included wellbeing days, meditation
practice, external wellbeing presenters, internal
wellbeing representatives, mental health first aid
officers, yoga, step count challenges, factsheets,
and a focus on ongoing connection whilst working
remotely through periods of lockdown. Pandemic
leave was also offered to our people.

85%+

BELIEVE THAT THE MENTAL HEALTH AND
WELLBEING OF OUR EMPLOYEES IS A PRIORITY
FOR QANTM

éé We believe that wellbeing is a journey of
constantly working towards having a healthy
mind, body and spirit for the joy of ourselves
and our loved ones. 9 9

Siew Ling Lee
Principal/Head of Advisory, Advanz Fidelis

QANTM has adopted a hybrid éé Flexibility means each of our people can
working model, tailored to work in a way that best suits them, to

the personal circumstances enable them to perform at their best. We
of each of our people. 90+% have embraced this at QANTM and this is
of our people are working our future. ’ ’

in a hybrid model, subject Cate Clarke

to government restrictions
in each locale. QANTM will Group People and Culture Program Manager, QANTM

FLEXIBILITY continue to embrace the
flexibility established over the
past year and will couple it with purposeful planning

about bringing people together. Our planning will
address specific work situations and tasks, keep us
connected, train and develop our people, and continue
to build upon the relationships and cultures that exist
across the QANTM Group. We will do this in a safe and

transparent way, with the health, safety and wellbeing
of our people continuing to have primacy.

90%+

FLEXIBLE WORKFORCE
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66 At QANTM, we are proud to lead the way
with our best in class programs and are
passionate about the continual development
and professional fulfilment of all our

people. 99

Anna Rosemeyer
Head of People and Culture, FPA

éé QANTM recognise the important role
of diversity and inclusion across our
businesses, both for our people and clients
alike. From a workplace where dignity
and respect are highly valued, and our
people can be themselves, to attracting
the best possible talent, it is a key part
of our future. 9 9

Daniel Tanswell
Head of People and Culture, DCC

IP

At QANTM, our ongoing
commitment to Learning

and Development is

the cornerstone of our
investment in our people. We
focus on both professional
and personal skills
development. Our bespoke
programs this past year

have focussed on building
leadership capabilities for
our senior team, a Business Development Pilot Program
(which will roll out across the wider Group in 2022) and
technical skills uplift for our practitioners. Our people
have also benefitted from a focus on general skills
acquisition including presentation skills, leading remote
teams, working as a remote employee, mental health
and wellbeing training programs, to name just a few.

85%+

PARTICIPATION IN ONLINE
LEARNING THROUGH IQ ONLINE

LEARNING AND
DEVELOPMENT

DIVERSITY AND
INCLUSION

WOMEN IN SENIOR ROLES
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Four directors currently serve on the QANTM Board, three are non-executive directors and one is an
executive director (the CEO and Managing Director). Detailed biographies, of each person holding the
position of director at the date of this Annual Report, are set out on pages 25 to 27 of the Directors’ Report.

RICHARD ENGLAND!
FCA, MAICD

Non-Executive Chairman

Member of the ARCC
Chair of PRCC

Richard was appointed
independent Non-
Executive Chairman on 17
May 2016. He was formerly
a partner at Emst & Young
from 1988 to 1994 and a
consultant until 2003.

Richard is a Fellow of
Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand
and a Member of the
Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

-]

CRAIG DOWER
FAICD, FAIM, MACS

CEO and
Managing Director

Craig was appointed

Chief Executive Officer of
QANTM on 13 January
2020 and appointed to the
Board as Managing Director
on 1 July 2020.

Craig's professional services
career has spanned

over 30 years and his
recent positions include
leadership roles as CEO
and Managing Director of
Xenith IP Group Limited;
CEO of Salmat (ASX:SLM);
and President, Asia Pacific
and China for Avanade Inc.
His experience includes
leading and driving
organisational change,
building high performance
teams, technology-based
innovation and integrating
and managing acquisitions.
He also has more than 20
years' experience working
across all of Asia Pacific,
including five years based
in Singapore.

Craig has served on a
number of boards both

as an executive and
non-executive director.

SONIA PETERING?
LLB, BCom, FAICD

Non-Executive Director

Chair of the ARCC
Member of the PRCC

Sonia has more than 15
years' experience in non-
executive director and
chair roles with listed and
unlisted companies and
government authorities
across financial services,
payments, insurance,
professional services and
healthcare. Sonia is an
experienced commercial
lawyer who commenced
her legal practice in
2001. She holds a current
Victorian legal practicing
certificate.

Sonia holds a Bachelor
of Laws and Bachelor
of Commerce from the
University of Melbourne
and is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

LEON ALLEN?

BSc (Hons), Patent
Attorney, MAICD

Non-Executive Director

Member of the ARCC
Member of the PRCC

Leon commenced work
as a patent attorney

in 1981, and served as
managing partner and
chairman of Davies
Collison Cave's national
management board from
2011, until becoming
QANTM's inaugural CEO
and Managing Director
in 2016.

Leon is a past president
of the Institute of

Patent and Trade Marks
Attorneys of Australia,
having served on its
Council from 1992 to
2013. Leon served two
terms on the Advisory
Council on Intellectual
Property to the Federal
Government, the second
as Chair. He is a Fellow
of the International
Federation of Patent
Attorneys Academy of
Education, teaching
patent drafting in Europe,
and is also a Senior
Fellow of the University
of Melbourne.

1 Mr England joined the ARCC and the PRCC from 1 October 2020 was appointed Chair of the PRCC with effect from 2 June 2021.
2 Ms Petering was appointed as Chair of the ARCC with effect from 28 November 2020.
3 Mr Allen joined the PRCC from 2 June 2021.
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GROUP EXECUTIVE TEAM

The QANTM Executive Team is comprised of eight executives

CRAIG DOWER
FAICD, FAIM, MACS

CEO and Managing Director

QANTM
Location - Melbourne, Sydney
Joined QANTM: 2020

B, RN

PETER LOOSMORE
BBus, CA
Chief Financial Officer

QANTM
Location - Sydney
Joined QANTM: 2021

L

:
8
:

|| Jat INGRERETI 1

MICHAEL WOLNIZER

LLB (Hons), LLM, Lawyer,
Trade Marks Attorney

Group Managing Principal

Davies Collison Cave
Location - Melbourne
Joined DCC: 1994

KYLIE SPROTT
BA, GAICD, CAHRI, AGSM

Chief Transformation
Officer

QANTM
Location - Brisbane
Joined QANTM: 2019

JOHN DOWER

BSc (Elec Eng), BProc
Patent Attorney

Managing Principal

FPA Patent Attorneys
Location - Sydney
Joined FPA: 2001

NICK WARD
LLB (Hons), BA

General Counsel and
Company Secretary

QANTM
Location - Melbourne
Joined QANTM: 2018

IP

DEBBIE DAVID

BSc Computing,
Patent Attorney

Managing Principal/CEO

Advanz Fidelis IP
Location - Kuala Lumpur
Joined AFIP: 2004

MORGAN SLOPER
BA, LLB (Hons), MLM, GAICD
Head of M&A and Risk

QANTM
Location - Sydney
Joined QANTM: 2020
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The Directors of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited (the Company or QANTM) present the full-year financial report of the
Company and its controlled entities (the Group or QANTM Group) for the 12 months ended 30 June 2021 (FY21). To comply
with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the Directors’ report follows.

QANTM is the owner of a group of leading intellectual property (IP) services businesses operating under four key brands:

Davies Collison Cave, including:

e Dauvies Collison Cave Pty Ltd - an incorporated patent and trade marks attorney business operating in Australia and New
Zealand (DCC);

e Davies Collison Cave Law Pty Ltd - an incorporated legal practice operating in Australia (DCC Law);

e Davies Collison Cave Asia Pte Ltd - an incorporated patent and trade marks attorney business operating in Singapore
(DCC Asia);

FPA Patent Attorneys, including:

e FPA Patent Attorneys Pty Ltd - an incorporated patent attorney business operating in Australia and New Zealand (FPA);
e FPA Patent Attorneys Asia Pte Ltd - an incorporated patent attorney business operating in Singapore (FPA Asia);

Advanz Fidelis IP Sdn Bhd - an incorporated intellectual property prosecution and advisory practice operating in Malaysia
(AFIP); and

Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys - an incorporated patent and trade marks attorney business operating in
Australia (Cotters).

QANTM is also the majority shareholder in an IP business advisory company, ipervescence Pty Ltd, which provides IP
consulting and flexible resourcing services (ipervescence).

QANTM generates revenue by providing services in relation to the creation, protection, commercialisation, enforcement and
management of IP. In addition, QANTM generates revenue outside the IP application process, with clients engaging the
QANTM businesses to provide strategic IP advice regarding their IP portfolio or that of their competitors. Such strategic advice
assists clients in identifying potential opportunities for IP protection. DCC Law provides IP legal and litigation services, and
corporate and commercial legal advice on mergers and acquisitions, governance and compliance, business structures and
restructures, capital raising, joint ventures, finance and asset protection.

QANTM has a diverse client base ranging from start-up ventures and SMEs to Fortune 500 multinationals, public sector
research institutions and universities. The majority of QANTM’s clients are located in the US, Europe, Japan and Australia and
can be broadly divided into three groups:

e |ocal clients, which include Australia, New Zealand, Singapore and Malaysia based corporates, public sector research
institutions, universities, and private individuals; and

e international clients which include:

— foreign corporates who engage directly with QANTM, including Fortune 500 companies and other foreign
multinational corporations; and
— international clients referred to QANTM by IP practices based overseas (Foreign Associates).

QANTM businesses have relationships with a broad range of Foreign Associates internationally. These Foreign Associates
engage QANTM businesses to act on behalf of international clients where that client wishes to obtain IP protection in Australia,
New Zealand, Singapore or Malaysia (often as part of the ‘national phase entry’ of PCT applications). Similarly, QANTM
businesses will engage a Foreign Associate to act on behalf of a QANTM client in Australia, New Zealand, Singapore or
Malaysia that wishes to obtain IP protection in the Foreign Associate’s jurisdiction. This reciprocity between QANTM
businesses and their network of Foreign Associates is important in generating incoming referrals of international clients and
revenue for the firms.

As at 30 June 2021, the QANTM Group had a total of 352 employees.

IP
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. General information

1.1. Directors

The names of the Directors in office at any time during, or since the end of, FY21 are:

Mr Richard England Non-Executive Chairman

Mr Craig Dower Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (appointed as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 13 January 2020 and also as Managing Director with
effect from 1 July 2020)

Mr Leon Allen Non-Executive Director (former Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director,
appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 July 2020)

Ms Abigail Cheadle Non-Executive Director (Retired 27 November 2020)
Mr Cameron Judson Non-Executive Director (Retired 21 May 2021)
Ms Sonia Petering Non-Executive Director
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1. General information (continued)

1.2 Information on directors

The skills, experience and expertise of each person who was a Director of the Company during the financial year are
provided below, together with details of the Company Secretary as at year end.

Mr Richard England
Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Former directorships of listed entities
(last 3 years)

Non-Executive Chairman
FCA, MAICD

Richard was appointed independent Non-Executive Chairman on 17 May
2016. He was formerly a partner at Ernst & Young from 1988 to 1994 and a
consultant until 2003. Richard is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand and a Member of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors.

135,134 shares

Chairman of the Board of Directors, member of the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee and Chair of the People, Remuneration and Culture
Committee.

None

Non-Executive Director of Japara Healthcare Limited (retired 1 September
2020). Non-Executive Chairman of Automotive Holdings Group Limited
(retired 31 October 2020). Non-Executive Director of Bingo Industries Limited
(retired 30 October 2020). Non-Executive Director of Atlas Arteria. (retired 30
November 2018).

Mr Craig Dower

Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (served as Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 13 January 2020, and also appointed as Managing
Director with effect from 1 July 2020)

FAIM, FAICD, MACS

Craig was appointed Chief Executive Officer of QANTM on 13 January 2020
and appointed to the Board as Managing Director on 1 July 2020. Craig’s
professional services career has spanned over 30 years and his recent
positions include leadership roles as CEO and Managing Director of Xenith IP
Group Limited, an ASX-listed IP services group; CEO of Salmat (ASX:SLM),
an ASX-listed multichannel marketing and customer engagement company;
and President, Asia Pacific and China for Avanade Inc. His experience
includes leading and driving organisational change, building high performance
teams, technology-based innovation and integrating and managing
acquisitions. He also has more than 20 years’ experience working across all
of Asia Pacific, including five years based in Singapore.

Craig has served on a number of boards both as an executive and non-
executive director.

He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management, a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors, and a Member of the Australian
Computer Society.

Issued with 295,050 performance rights during FY20 pursuant to QANTM'’s
Employee Incentive Plan, 59,010 of which vested as QANTM ordinary shares
during FY21.

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

None
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. General information (continued)

1.2 Information on directors (continued)

Mr Leon Allen

Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Former directorships of listed entities
(last 3 years)

Non-Executive Director (appointed with effect from 1 July 2021) (formerly
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer — retired with effect from 13
January 2020)

BSc (Hons), Patent Attorney

Leon commenced work as a patent attorney in 1981, and served as managing
partner and chairman of Davies Collison Cave's national management board
from 2011, until becoming QANTM’s inaugural CEO/MD in 2016. Leon is a
past president of the Institute of Patent and Trade Marks Attorneys of
Australia, having served on its Council from 1992 to 2013. Leon served two
terms on the Advisory Council on Intellectual Property to the Federal
Government, the second as Chair. He is a Fellow of the International
Federation of Patent Attorneys Academy of Education, teaching patent
drafting in Europe, and is also a Senior Fellow of the University of Melbourne

2,037,227 shares

Member of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee and the People,
Remuneration and Culture Committee

None

None

Ms Sonia Petering
Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Former directorships of listed entities
(last 3 years)

Non-Executive Director
LLB, B.Com, FAICD

Sonia has more than 15 years' experience in non-executive director and chair
roles with listed and unlisted companies and government authorities across
financial services, payments, insurance, professional services and healthcare.

Sonia is an experienced commercial lawyer who commenced her legal
practice in 2001. She holds a current Victorian legal practicing certificate.

Sonia previously served as a Non-Executive Director on the boards of
Transport Accident Commission of Victoria and Rural Finance Corporation of
Victoria and as Chair of the Board of Rural Finance Corporation from 2009 -
2016.

Sonia holds a Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce from the
University of Melbourne and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors.

45,044 shares

Chair of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (from 28 November
2020) and member of the People, Remuneration and Culture Committee

Non-Executive Director of Virtus Health Limited (ASX:VRT).

None
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1.

General information (continued)

1.2 Information on directors (continued)

Ms Abigail Cheadle
Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Former directorships of listed entities
(last 3 years)

Non-Executive Director (retired from QANTM Board 27 November 2020)
B. Bus, ACA, MAICD

Abigail is a chartered accountant and member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. She was formerly a certified fraud examiner and a
member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.

Abigail has had an executive career with global services firms in Asia:

e building and managing professional services businesses for Kroll,
KordaMentha, Ernst & Young and Deloitte;

e restructuring and recapitalising listed companies; and
e managing risk for multi- nationals.

Abigail returned to Australia to be CEO of a disruptive tech platform which was
sold before embarking on a non- executive career.

45,045 shares (as at 27 November 2020)

Chair of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (until 1 October 2020),
and member of People, Remuneration and Culture Committee

Non- Executive Director of Shriro Holdings Limited

Non-Executive Director of Isentia Group Limited (until 15 April 2021)
Non-Executive Director of SurfStitch Group Limited

Mr Cameron Judson
Qualifications

Experience

Interest in shares and options

Special responsibilities

Other current listed directorships

Former directorships of listed entities
(last 3 years)

Non-Executive Director (retired from QANTM Board 21 May 2021)

BA, MBA, MAICD

Most recently, Cameron held CEO roles with ASX-listed McGrath Estate
Agents and Chandler Macleod Group, and is currently CEO of Angus Knight
Group. Prior to these roles, he held a range of leadership roles with
Chandler Macleod, UTC Fire & Security and TNT.

Cameron is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
45,044 shares (as at 21 May 2021)

Chair of the People, Remuneration and Culture Committee (until 21 May
2021), member of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (until 1 October
2020)

None (as at 21 May 2021)
Non-Executive Director for Limeade (ASX:LME)
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1. General information (continued)

1.2 Information on directors (continued)
Company Secretary

The following person held the position of Company Secretary at the end of the financial year:
. Mr Martin Cleaver

Martin was appointed as Company Secretary on 30 August 2017 and also serves as Chief Financial Officer. Martin is a
chartered accountant with over twenty years’ experience in senior finance roles, including most recently with Chandler
Macleod Group Ltd as Executive General Manager, Finance and also as Deputy Chief Financial Officer. Prior to that
Martin held senior finance positions at ANZ Banking Group Ltd and KPMG. Martin has resigned from the Company and
will cease employment with effect from 27 August 2021.

2. Meetings of Directors

The number of meetings of QANTM's Board of Directors (the Board) held during FY21, and number attended by each
Director during that period are:

Directors’ Meetings Au.dit, Risk and. People, Remunerafcion and

Compliance Committee Culture Committee

Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held
Mr Richard England 22 22 3 3 1 1

Mr Craig Dower 22 22 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mr Leon Allen 22 22 3 3 1 1
Ms Sonia Petering 22 22 4 4 6 6
Ms Abigail Cheadle 11 11 2 2 3 3
Mr Cameron Judson 17 17 2 3 5 5

Notes:
! Mr England joined the ARCC and the PRCC from 1 October 2020 was appointed Chair of the PRCC with effect from 2 June
2021.

2 Ms Petering was appointed as Chair of the ARCC with effect from 28 November 2020.
3 Ms Cheadle retired as a Director, and Chair of the ARCC, with effect from 27 November 2020.

4 Mr Judson retired as a Director, and Chair of the PRCC, with effect from 21 May 2021.
5 Mr Allen joined the PRCC from 2 June 2021.

3. Principal Activities

QANTM is the owner of a group of leading IP services businesses operating under four key brands, and is a majority
shareholder in ipervescence Pty Ltd, an IP business advisory company, as outlined in section 1 of this report.

QANTM’s principal operations are in Australia, Singapore and Malaysia. In Australia, DCC, FPA and Cotters service
both local and international clients in relation to their Australian IP rights, and DCC Law provides legal services. DCC
also operates in New Zealand. Asia is a strategic focus, with DCC Asia and FPA Asia opening offices in Singapore in
2015 and 2018 respectively. AFIP provides IP services for Malaysian clients as well as regional and other international
clients.

QANTM acquired Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys in May 2020. Apart from the first full year of operation of
Cotters, there were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the financial year.
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4. Operational and financial review’

The year was highlighted by a challenging and rapidly changing external environment. Against this backdrop the
Company delivered a solid performance across a number of important outcomes, and an improved financial performance
across several key metrics.

The following provides commentary on the Group’s FY21 results.

The Group’s total revenue for FY21 was higher than FY20 at $119.1 million, compared with $116.6 million for the 12
month period ended 30 June 2020 (FY20). Net revenue, after other income and recoverable expenses from Associate
Charges, was $95.6 million compared with $94.0 million for FY19. The Group’s reported consolidated EBITDA after
foreign exchange was also higher than prior year at $24.8 million compared with $23.4 million EBITDA for FY20. The
Group’s statutory NPAT was $10.4 million, compared with $9.4 million in FY20, while underlying NPAT was $12.1
million, compared with underlying NPAT in FY20 of $13.4 million (refer table on page 12 for a reconciliation from
statutory NPAT to underlying NPAT).

Net debt as at 30 June 2021 was $16.1 million, compared with $17.4 million as at 30 June 2020. Gearing (net debt/net
debt + book equity) at 30 June 2021 was 18.1%. (30 June 2020: 19.6%).

In line with the Company’s dividend payment policy, Directors determined a total FY21 dividend payment of 7.4 cents
per share, fully franked, made up of an interim dividend of 4.0 cents per share and a final dividend of 3.4 cents per share.
The FY20 dividend payment was 7.1 cents, made up of an interim dividend of 3.3 cents and a final dividend of 3.8 cents,
fully franked.

The Group’s Total Operating Expenses were $70.8 million in FY21, compared with $70.6 million in FY20 (refer below for
details of Recoverable Expenses associated with Associate Charges). Underlying Total Operating Expenses were $68.4
million, compared with $66.1 million in FY20.

Principal operational and business activities during the year included:

QANTM business entities and team performing exceptionally well under the continued business challenges
associated with COVID-19 disruptions and lockdowns, most notably for AFIP in Malaysia but across all operations
at various times;

progress in relation to all of the main components of QANTM’s business priorities, related to: people and
organisational development; technology modernisation; process simplification; deeper client engagement and
collaboration; and the advancement of growth and scale initiatives;

people and organisational development initiatives included: the efficient transition of the entire workforce to an
ability to work remotely with investment in the necessary hardware and systems support to facilitate this outcome;
the promotion of 16 professionals across the Group, of which 75% were women, with women comprising 50% of
promotions into management roles; high retention levels (above 90% across the group) and the in-sourcing of
several key roles (including technology) which were previously delivered on a consulting basis; appointment of our
first female managing principal in Malaysia;

technology modernisation and process simplification: implementation of cloud-based human resources and finance
platforms are underway as part of a process to integrate disparate systems and build internal capabilities and
reporting systems; while a case management system is at scoping stage;

client engagement and collaboration: the completion of a pilot program and the initial implementation of a world-
class client engagement platform, backed by investment in technology, people and processes, as part of QANTM’s
commitment to improving the quality and efficiency of client engagement. In addition, QANTM has acquired an Al-
based SaaS (Software as a service Suite) trademark productivity system which is expected to improve both trade
mark attorney efficiency as well as improving client servicing;

advancement of growth and scale initiatives: investment in growth and business development occurred through the
establishment of a DCC sales office in the United States of America, while continued evaluation of suitable merger
and acquisition opportunities was undertaken with the advancement of several opportunities to an investment case
stage; and

! The Directors believe the use of underlying financial and additional information to the IFRS measures included in the report is relevant and
useful in measuring the financial performance of the Group.
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4. Operational and financial review (continued)

the first full year contribution from Sydney-based IP firm Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys, which introduces
diversity into the QANTM business model through its fixed price service and differing customer demographic to
DCC and FPA. Business conditions during FY21 did not favour Cotters in terms of the level of its financial
contribution, but its business offering remains a logical and valuable extension to the QANTM group IP offering in
the medium to long term.

The external environment will continue to present challenges that may impact our future performance and will require us
to continue to adapt, manage and respond.

4.1. Business conditions

Business conditions in FY21 were primarily marked by the following features:

the patent service offering of DCC, FPA and AFIP recorded a strong performance, with combined service charge
revenue increasing by 2.3% despite the adverse revenue impact of a higher AUD/USD exchange rate for the year.
On a like-for-like currency basis, service charge revenue would have increased 7.3% on pcp. Patents contributed
70% of Group service charge revenues;

overall QANTM Group patent applications grew 11.0%, with new Australian patent application filings increasing by
9.7%, in the context of an overall Australian patent market increase of 2.4%;

QANTM’s Australian patent application market share increased to 15.8% compared with 14.7% in FY20

QANTM Group patent application filings in Asia increased by 14%, despite a markedly lower contribution from AFIP
due to COVID-19 business restrictions. Asia now represents 14% of Group patent applications;

Rest of World patent applications (24% of the Group total) increased by 11%; PCT applications (4% of Group total)
increased by 20%

QANTM’s Group trade mark service charge revenue increased by 0.7%. Trade marks contributed 17% of Group
service charge revenue. QANTM’s total Group trade mark filings declined 7.6% for the year, mainly due to a 68%
decline in Asian trade mark filings, associated with COVID-19 related business restrictions for AFIP in Malaysia;

QANTM’s Australian trade mark filings (53% of the Group total) increased by 8% in the context of total Australian
(top 50 filers excluding International Registration Designation Australia ‘IRDA’) trade mark market increase of
11.5%;

in Australia, DCC remained the number one practice amongst the top 50 trade mark filers, with a market share of
10.1%;

New Zealand trade mark filings (11.5% of the Group total) increased by 10%;

legal service charge revenue (which includes advisory services provided by AFIP) declined by $0.2 million or 1.6%
compared to FY20, mainly associated with the completion of a strong case load work stream during 1H21; and

Asia region total revenues from DCC, FPA and AFIP across patents, trade marks and advisory services decreased
by 7.1%. Asia now constitutes 6.3% of QANTM'’s total revenues.

30 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED



IP

4. Operational and financial review (continued)

4.2. Financial Results — Key Elements
The main features of the FY21 financial results are provided below:

The underlying results are provided to enable investors to make appropriate comparisons from one year to the next. The
underlying results of the QANTM Group for FY21 are adjusted for various items, with a net total of $2.4 million (FY20:
$4.4 million) not considered items of a recurring nature. These included SaaS costs and research costs associated with
the transformation program, business acquisition costs and one-off retention costs. Refer to page 12 for a reconciliation
of statutory Net Profit After Tax (‘NPAT’) to underlying NPAT.

Revenue
The Group’s total revenue (service charges and associate charges) was $119.1 million (FY20: $116.6 million).

Revenues in FY21 includes an initial contribution of $1.9 million (FY20: $0.2 million) by Cotters Patent & Trademark
Attorneys, acquired effective 22 May 2020.

Total net revenue of $95.6 million (FY20: $94.0 million) included other income of $1.9 million, and is after recoverable
expenses from associate charges of $25.4 million.

Services charges increased by 2.3% to $92.4 million (FY20: $90.3 million), comprising the following main components:
e Patent services charges (70% of total QANTM services charges) of $64.3 million (FY20: $62.1 million);
e Trade mark services charges (17% of QANTM'’s services charges) of $15.8 million (FY20: $15.7 million);

e Legal revenue (13% of QANTM'’s total) of $12.3 million (FY20: $12.5 million).

Expenses

Total underlying operating expenses were $68.4 million, a $2.3 million or 3.5% increase from the prior comparative period
(FY20: $66.1 million). Higher underlying expenditure related to a $3.6 million increase in employee benefits costs
including fee earner remuneration, performance based incentive expenses, the establishment of a US sales office, and
investment in corporate resources. The addition of the Cotters business also contributed $1.3 million to staff costs. In
addition there was a $0.5 million increase in technology expenses associated with investment in and support of remote
working arrangements. These increases were partially offset by a $1.8 million reduction in other expenses, mainly related
to a reduction in travel.

4.3. EBITDA and EBITDA Margin

Statutory EBITDA before an FX loss of $1.1 million was $23.7 million (FY20: $22.6 million before an FX loss of $0.8
million). EBITDA margin (on Service Charges) was 25.6% (FY20: 25.0%)

Underlying EBITDA, after foreign exchange (FX) was $26.1 million (FY20: $27.1 million). The $1.0 million lower EBITDA
from prior comparative period is in the context of an unfavourable FX headwind at the revenue line of $4.5 million and
$0.3 million at the earnings line, and higher operating expenditures.

Underlying EBITDA margin (on Service Charges) was 28.2% (FY20: 30.0%). EBITDA margin on total revenue was
21.9% (FY20: 23.2%).
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4. Operational and financial review (continued)

4.4. Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation in FY21 was $7.3 million compared with $6.8 million in FY20. The increase was mainly
due to additions in IT equipment and software.

4.5. Net Profit After Tax

Statutory net profit after tax was $10.4 million (FY20: $9.4 million), a 10.6% increase. Earnings per share was 7.71 cents
(FY20: 7.18 cents).

Underlying net profit after tax was $12.1 million (FY20: $13.4 million), a 9.6 decrease. Refer page 12 for a reconciliation
from statutory to underlying NPAT.
4.6. Net Interest and Net Debt
Net interest charges in FY21 were $1.6 million. The Company held total bank facilities of $59 million and had $21.8
million drawn as at 30 June 2021 with $5.7 million cash on hand. As at 30 June 2021 the Company had net debt of $16.1
million. Gearing (net debt/net debt + equity) at 30 June 2021 was 18.1 per cent. The Company continues to comply with
the financial covenants of its facility agreement.
4.7. Operating Cash Flow
Cash flow provided by operating activities for the year was $19.8 million (FY20: $15.1 million), with a net decrease of

$0.4 million after investing and financing movements.

4.8. Net Assets

The net assets of the Group have increased by $1.6 million, from $71.2 million at 30 June 2020 to $72.8 million at 30
June 2021. Trade receivables increased $3.5 million and trade payables increased $2.3 million both due to increased
business activity in the latter part of the financial year. Net debt decreased by $1.3 million.
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5. Net profit after tax?

The reconciliation table below reconciles statutory net profit after tax (‘Statutory NPAT’) to underlying NPAT:

Year ended
30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
$'000 $'000
Statutory NPAT 10,385 9,377
add: interest 1,610 1,535
add: depreciation and amortisation 7,295 6,760
add: tax 4,421 4,941
EBITDA — QANTM Group 23,711 22,613
add: remuneration related to business acquisition - 1,860
add: new business establishment costs - 299
add: SaaS expenses 1,066 -
add: research costs associated with transformation 260 -
add: retention payments 645 814
add: business acquisition costs 379 1,402
Underlying EBITDA — QANTM Group 26,061 26,988
less: depreciation and amortisation (7,295) (6,760)
less: interest (1,610) (1,535)
less: tax (5,012) (5,275)
Underlying NPAT - QANTM Group 12,144 13,418

2 Represents non-IFRS information and is unaudited.
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6. Business model, strategy, priorities and business sustainability risks

6.1.

6.2.

Business model

QANTM, a leading publicly listed IP company, offers to clients in a range of sectors, services associated with the creation,
protection, commercialisation, enforcement and management of IP rights. The services offered are highly specialised
and provided through IP services businesses operating under four main brands - Davies Collison Cave (‘DCC’), FPA
Patent Attorneys (‘FPA’), Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys (‘Cotters’) and Malaysian company, Advanz Fidelis
IP Sdn Bhd (‘AFIP’).

Key characteristics of QANTM include the following:

e attractive industry dynamics, for example, historical compound annual growth rates of patent filings typically at or
above GDP levels;

e QANTM’s largest businesses, DCC and FPA, have traded profitably over long periods and through various economic
cycles;

e a business model that generates recurring revenue streams, often over periods of at least 20 years;
e regular invoicing of clients with typically low work-in-progress/working capital;
e generally low capital expenditure;

e associated strong cash flow conversion, enabling the payment of dividends and/or re-investment in opportunities for
growth;

e an attractive EBITDA margin structure;
e favourable industry dynamics and growth prospects in developing economies; and

e high barriers to entry associated with the importance of reputable, technically qualified patent attorneys, long term
client relationships and information systems for patents and trade mark recording.

Strategy and priorities

QANTM'’s strategic focus is based on: attracting and retaining high quality professionals, revenue growth and client
retention through offering consistently superior IP services, market and business development activities, including new
business services, and, where appropriate, on a strategic and financial basis, merger and acquisition activity. From the
foregoing activities, the Group seeks to deliver attractive shareholder returns.

The main elements of QANTM'’s strategic focus include:

o focus on revenue growth from the existing business model, via new patent and trade mark applications, prosecution,
advisory services and patent and trade mark renewals;

e provision of patent litigation and other services to both domestic and international clients, with business generated
from both QANTM'’s entities as well as outside clients;

o development and expansion of an intellectual property services business in Asia, which has included the acquisition
of AFIP in Malaysia, establishing a Singapore office presence for both DCC and FPA, managing clients’ Asian
portfolios and filings and building a local originating presence drawing upon the firm’s technical expertise, as well as
by selective professional appointments. QANTM is also continuing to pursue appropriate acquisition opportunities
in Asia.

The business strategic framework to facilitate these outcomes has the following main elements:

e people and organisational development through investing in future skills — technology, commercial, leadership;
training support staff to assist in the delivery of greater client value; establishment of new capabilities, including in
new geographies;

e technology modernisation, including the migration of key systems to the Cloud; building of future capabilities (Al,
data / analytics); as well as processing platforms, APIs and an innovation framework;
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6.3.

Business model, strategy, priorities and business sustainability risks (continued)

e process improvement through simplifying all business processes, including automating or eliminating redundant
systems; building Al and machine learning platforms;

¢ client engagement and collaboration through implementation of client engagement and client account planning
methodologies, as well as provision of new services; and

e advancement of growth and scale initiatives through expansion of the Group’s footprint in Asia; establishing sales
desks in key locations; pursuit of adjacent service lines and technology-related plays; as well as pursuit of
appropriate M&A opportunities.

Business Sustainability Risks

The operating environment for QANTM entails business risks and opportunities that could have an effect on the financial
prospects of the Group. These risks include, but are not restricted to the following:

Competition

The Group operates in sectors that are subject to vigorous competition based on factors including price, responsiveness,
service delivery (including increased use of technology), and the ability to provide clients with an appropriate range of IP
services. Actions by existing competitors, entry of new competitors, insourcing of IP services by key clients, changing
client expectations (including an expansion of fixed price requirements and reduced tolerance for scale charges),
encroachment by artificial intelligence alternatives or failure by the Group to meet changing market conditions could
adversely impact the Group’s competitive position which may result in a decline in service charges and margins of the
Group, which may have a material adverse effect on the financial results.

The Group undertakes a number of activities to provide effective client service, develop and enhance client relationships
and continue to provide a broad range of IP services.

Regulatory

IP regulation is subject to ongoing change as it endeavours to stay apace with rapid technological advancement. Any
material changes to the Australian or international legislation, regulations, treaties or general law in relation to the IP
regime has the potential to adversely affect the Group.

This could include any legislative or regulatory changes that have the effect of removing or diminishing the rights and
privileges granted exclusively by statute to Australian patent attorneys, or local “address for service” requirements. An
example of potential diminution in the role performed by QANTM as a local agent is the proposal which has been under
consideration for at least ten years to extend the ePCT system for filing international patent applications to the subsequent
“national phase” entry stage. It is currently not known when or if the ePCT system will be extended in this way, or if IP
Australia would participate in any such extension, however, if implemented, this proposal may have a significant adverse
impact on revenue currently derived by QANTM from the national phase entry process step.

Further, the majority of patent applications are separately examined in each country or region in which the applications
are filed. QANTM derives substantial revenue from the substantive examination process in Australia, New Zealand and
other jurisdictions. There is a long-term international trend toward harmonisation of patent examination regimes. Various
proposals have been discussed, and in some cases implemented, with the aim of minimising duplication of effort across
multiple offices and improving consistency of examination outcomes, subject to variations in local laws. Any
harmonisation regime that has the effect of diminishing IP services that QANTM provides in connection with these patent
examination processes may have an ambitious impact on revenue and profitability.

The boundaries of patentable subject matter continue to evolve as a result of technological innovation, legislative changes
and judicial interpretation. Material changes to the regulatory landscape or the interpretation of the regulatory framework
may adversely affect QANTM’s revenue by narrowing the scope of patentable subject matter, and hence potentially the
number of patent applications filed in particular technical fields.

The Group continually monitors regulatory and legal issues affecting the Group’s business and implements any changes
to operations necessary to comply.
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6. Business model, strategy, priorities and business sustainability risks (continued)

Attraction, engagement and retention of high performing professionals

The nature of the services provided by the Group are fundamentally based on the intellectual knowledge, industry
experience and client knowledge of key professional staff. The Group relies on attracting, engaging and retaining its
high performing Principals and professionals to offer a broad skill set to its clients. The loss of key professionals
poses a risk to the quality of the Group’s service offering and potential revenue generation. There is significant
management focus on initiatives to attract, engage, retain and facilitate the career and professional development of
key personnel. This includes facilitating professional development through education, courses and involvement in
professional associations; promotion of individuals on an annual basis — including to Principal — and where,
practicable, role or geographical rotation. Offering a fulfilling work environment and rewarding work, continuing to
invest in health and wellbeing programs for employees, and embracing diversity and inclusion and remunerating
fairly, including through the revised market-based remuneration arrangements for Principals who accepted fixed
remuneration arrangements and no participation in incentive programs for a three year period from QANTM'’s IPO, as
referenced in the Remuneration Report section of QANTM’s Annual Report, are key elements of retention and
engagement. A process of determining succession planning arrangements for key personnel is a priority. Principals
(apart from those Principals who received equity upon QANTM'’s IPO) also participate in an employee share plan.

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial part of the Group’s revenue is generated and expenses incurred in US dollars. An adverse change in
the AUD/US dollar exchange rate could adversely impact revenue and earnings, with the financial reports for the
Company denominated in Australian dollars.

The Company has in place and utilises foreign currency hedging facilities as part of its bank facilities, which partly
mitigates the exposure, and monitors the foreign currency exposures that arise from its foreign currency revenue,
expenditure and cash flows. The company also has a USD loan facility that also mitigates the exposure of its USD
receivables.

Cyber Security
QANTM takes cyber security and its potential consequences extremely seriously.

QANTM’s business is heavily dependent upon computerised technology platforms, including customised electronic
case management, document management, file management, client relationship management and reporting systems.
If the Group’s ICT systems suffer severe damage, disruption or shutdown and the issues are not effectively resolved
in a timely manner, then the Group’s revenue, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and
adversely affected and the Group may breach regulatory requirements. Any failure of the Group’s ICT systems may
result in the inability to file or prosecute the IP rights of their clients within statutory deadlines. Such a failure could
result in the Group’s clients forfeiting IP rights to which they would have otherwise been entitled. These events could
lead to financial loss for the Group in the event that aggrieved clients initiate legal action against the Group. Depending
on the circumstances the Group’s insurance may be insufficient to cover some or all of the loss incurred.

The Group relies on software integration, interfaces and communication platforms to manage its businesses in an
efficient manner and has comprehensive security arrangements in place to prevent attempted attacks. The application
of automation and deeper integration is a key objective and accordingly the management of cyber security risk and
continual improvement in system security is a significant priority for management.

There is a residual risk that QANTM'’s backup protocols, inbuilt redundancies, restoration procedures and data recovery
plans may not be adequate to enable timely recovery in all conceivable circumstances, including natural disasters,
acts of terrorism or war, failure of utilities, sabotage, including breaches of cyber security and malicious hacking, or
system failure due to other causes. A serious breach of privacy caused by a cyber-attack could result in damage to
brand reputation, financial loss and permanent loss of revenue. Levels of redundancy and backup are built into IT
systems to provide system availability and protection of data.
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Business model, strategy, priorities and business sustainability risks (continued)

QANTM is making a significant investment in improved IT systems, including to support simplification and automation
of some business processes, primarily to improve efficiency. These improvements will also assist in mitigating cyber
security risks. This investment program is overseen by a new executive role of Chief Transformation Officer, to which
Kylie Sprott was appointed during FY20.

Acquisitions

The Group’s growth strategy involves growth by potential acquisitions of other intellectual property and adjacent
businesses and lateral hires of professionals. There are risks of acquisitions or professionals hired not attaining
benefits expected, or poor integration into the Group.

QANTM'’s growth strategy includes a focus on Asia. QANTM operates intellectual property businesses in Malaysia
and Singapore, and is exposed to adverse changes in the competitive environment in those markets, and to risks
associated with regulatory approaches and changes and operating and economic conditions in those markets.

The Group undertakes extensive due diligence of any potential acquisition target or lateral hire and engages
professional experts to advise and assist where necessary. A new executive role of Head of Mergers & Acquisitions
and Risk was created during FY20, to which Morgan Sloper was appointed.

COvID 19

COVID 19 has the potential to impact QANTM in two main respects. First, in common with many businesses, there is
the potential forimpacts on the health and wellbeing of key personnel, impairing their ability to contribute to the Group’s
business success. This could either be through direct health impacts of infection, or through adverse effects on mental
health and wellbeing as a result of the measures mandated by government and through appropriate measures
introduced by QANTM in the interests of health and safety to help reduce the rate of infection, such as remote working,
with offices being closed or minimally staffed. These risks are managed through a focus on compliance with
recommendations and requirements of health authorities, and a focus on the wellbeing of our people, through the
adoption of a range of wellbeing and mental health initiatives.

Second, while QANTM has not seen a material deterioration in its financial performance during FY21, reduced investment
in innovation and intellectual property protection by the Group’s clients is possible going forward. QANTM continues to
monitor closely levels of activity and revenue, and costs, to ensure it is prepared to respond to a material downturn in
client activity.

Management maintains a prioritised ranking of such risks and addresses their mitigation and with external advisers
where necessary.

For further details on key risks to QANTM’s business, and QANTM’s approach to risk, please refer to the Group’s
Corporate Governance Statement at www.gantmip.com.au.

Significant changes in state of affairs

Martin Cleaver resigned as CFO and will cease employment with QANTM Group on 27 August 2021. Mr Peter Loosmore
commenced employment with QANTM on 21 July 2021, and will commence as Interim CFO with effect from 27 August
2021.

There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during FY21.
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited)

The directors present the remuneration report for the year ending 30 June 2021. The information provided in this report
has been audited as required by section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

This remuneration report, which forms part of the directors’ report, sets out information about the remuneration of the
Group’s key management personnel (“KMP”) for FY21. KMP refers to those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether
executive or otherwise) of the Group.

The report has been divided into the following sections:

Identification of the KMP;

Role of the People, Remuneration and Culture Committee;
Non-Executive Director remuneration;

Executive remuneration framework;

Relationship between the remuneration policy and Group performance;
FY21 Executive Incentive Outcomes

Key terms of KMP employment contracts;

Remuneration of KMP; and

KMP equity holdings.

Key Management Personnel

The directors and other KMP of the Group during, or since the end of FY21, were as set out below.

Non-Executive Director  Position Commencement and cessation dates

Mr Richard England Non-Executive Chairman 17 May 2016

Ms Sonia Petering Non-Executive Director 9 June 2016

Ms Abigail Cheadle Non-Executive Director 9 June 2016 (retired 27 November 2020)

Mr Cameron Judson Non-Executive Director 9 June 2016 (retired 21 May 2021)

Mr Leon Allen Non-Executive Director 1 July 2020

Executive officers

Craig Dower Chief Executive Officer 13 January 2020 (as CEO) and 1 July 2020 (as Managing
and Managing Director Director)
(CEO)

Martin Cleaver Chief Financial Officer 30 August 2017 (resigned, ceases employment 27 August
(CFO) and Company 2021)
Secretary

The KMP named held their respective positions for the whole of the financial year, with the exception of Abigail Cheadle
and Cameron Judson. Ms Cheadle retired from her position of Non-Executive Director with effect from 27 November
2020. Mr Judson retired from his position of Non-Executive Director with effect from 21 May 2021. With Martin Cleaver’s
cessation of employment on 27 August 2021, Mr Peter Loosmore will become interim CFO for the QANTM Group.

Role of the People, Remuneration and Culture Committee

The PRCC operates in accordance with a charter approved by the board. The PRCC is comprised of independent, non-
executive directors, and assists and advises the board on remuneration policies and practices for non-executive directors,
the CEO and Managing Director, the CFO, other senior executives and the Group generally.

The objective of the PRCC is to help the board fulfil its statutory, fiduciary and regulatory responsibilities and achieve its
objectives so that the Company:

. has a board possessing an appropriate range of skills, experience and expertise to discharge effectively its
responsibilities and duties;

. has in place and operates in accordance with coherent remuneration policies and practices to attract and retain
executives and directors who will create value for shareholders;

. fairly and responsibly rewards executives having regard to the performance of the Group, the performance of the
executives and the general external pay environment; and

. maintains a culture which supports high standards of corporate governance and ethical conduct for the Group.

The terms of the PRCC charter are published on the Company’s website.
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)

Non-Executive Director’s Remuneration

Under the QANTM Constitution, the total amount of fees paid to all directors for their services (excluding for these purposes,
the salary of an executive director) must not in any financial year exceed in aggregate $850,000 or such higher maximum
amount as is determined from time to time by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting. There has been no
change in this aggregate fee limit during FY21, and the total fees received by Non-Executive Directors in FY21 was $568,480.
The current annual fees are:

Chair: $204,000
Non-Executive Director: $122,400 (including Committee fees)

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the directors resolved to decrease service fees for non-executive directors by 10%
for a period of 6 months commencing in May 2020. Fees for non-executive directors are reviewed regularly by PRCC and
Board. Fees for non-executive directors did not increase during FY21. The Board’s policy is that Director and Committee
fees are set on the basis of independent benchmarking and are reviewed annually.

Directors may also be reimbursed for expenses reasonably incurred in attending to the Company’s affairs. Non-executive
directors may be paid such additional or special remuneration as the directors decide is appropriate where a director performs
extra work or services outside their capacity as a director of the Company or a subsidiary. There is no performance
remuneration for non-executive directors. There are no retirement benefit schemes for directors, other than statutory
superannuation contributions.

Details of non-executive director fees, inclusive of committee fees and superannuation, are summarised in the Remuneration
of KMP table in this report.

Each of the non-executive directors holds shares in the Company, providing a direct alignment of interests with the
performance of the QANTM business, and the interests of other shareholders. As of 2 August 2019, the Board adopted a
requirement that each non-executive director must hold (or have a benefit in) shares in the Company equivalent to at least
one year’s base fees for that director. Subject to any restrictions on dealing under the terms of the Company’s Securities
Dealing Policy, such holdings must be acquired over three years from 30 August 2019 (for non-executive directors appointed
prior to 2 August 2019) or from the date on which a director joins the board (for other non-executive directors).

Executive Remuneration Framework
Total Fixed Remuneration (TFR)

Executive KMP receive TFR which includes base pay and superannuation, as well as other benefits such as annual leave
and long service leave.

The CEO and Managing Director, Mr Dower’s total fixed remuneration remained at $650,000 per annum. The total fixed
remuneration of the CFO, Mr Cleaver, increased from $360,000 per annum to $375,000 per annum, inclusive of
superannuation, with effect from 1 December 2020.

Both Mr Dower and Mr Cleaver agreed to a voluntary 10% reduction in total fixed remuneration for a six month period
commencing in May 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Short Term Incentive (STI) Plan — FY21

During FY21, Messrs Dower and Cleaver participated in an STI plan in accordance with the terms of their employment
contracts. Details of STI payments are set out in the Remuneration of KMP table in this report. The QANTM Board of Directors
retains a discretion to vary or cancel short term incentive payments to KMP and other QANTM corporate executives.

STI results for the financial year are based on achieving Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) approved by the Board. Mr
Dower will again participate in an STI plan in accordance with his employment contract with respect to FY22. As announced
to the ASX on 19 July 2021, Mr Cleaver has resigned from QANTM and will cease employment on 27 August 2021, however,
his successor, Mr Peter Loosmore, who will commence as interim CFO on 30 August 2021, will participate in an ST plan on
a similar basis to Mr Cleaver.
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)

Sign on Bonus

In accordance with the terms of his employment contract, and as announced to the ASX on 23 June 2020, in FY20 Mr Dower
received an allocation of 295,050 performance rights under an employee incentive plan established at QANTM’s IPO in 2016,
which was re-approved by shareholders at QANTM’s 2019 Annual General Meeting (the Employee Incentive Plan). This
Plan sets out the terms on which employees can be issued with shares in QANTM and/or performance rights convertible into
shares. A description of the Employee Incentive Plan was included in the explanatory notes to the Company’s 2019 Notice
of Annual General Meeting dated 25 October 2019. The rules of the Employee Incentive Plan permit QANTM to vary the
terms of the Employee Incentive Plan by written instrument or resolution of the QANTM Board of Directors at any time. Details
of the performance rights issued to Mr Dower as a sign-on bonus are:

e Total value at issue of rights: $400,000, with each right valued at $1.35570, based on the volume weighted average
selling price of QANTM'’s shares over the 5 ASX trading days immediately preceding the date of commencement
of Mr Dower’s employment on 13 January 2020.

e Vesting of rights: The rights vest, and are convertible into ordinary shares, in three tranches, on the business day
after announcement of QANTM’s half-year financial results in February 2021 (20%), 2022 (30%) and 2023 (50%)
respectively. Vesting is subject to reasonable satisfaction of performance conditions to be determined by the board
and subject to the terms of the Employee Incentive Plan. No exercise price is payable on vesting. If the vesting
conditions are not satisfied, or if the rights are not exercised within 6 months of the dates on which the vesting
conditions are satisfied, then the relevant tranche of rights will lapse.

¢ Rights vesting in FY21: As announced to the ASX on 25 March 2021, the first tranche of those rights vested
on 24 March 2021, with 59,010 QANTM shares allocated to Mr Dower. The balance of 236,040 rights are not
yet eligible to vest.

Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan
Mr Dower did not participate in an LTI Plan in FY21.

Mr Cleaver participated in an LTI Plan in FY21. As announced to the ASX on 22 October 2020 and 25 March 2021, there
were two issues of performance rights to Mr Cleaver during 2021, under the Company’s Employee Incentive Plan:

. 190,797 performance rights were issued on 22 October 2020.

. Total value at issue of rights: $199,999, with each right valued at $1.04823, based on the volume-weighted
average price of QANTM shares over the 5 ASX trading days after QANTM Shares went ‘ex-dividend’ in
September 2020 following the declaration of the final dividend for QANTM in August 2020.

o Vesting of rights: The rights vest, and are convertible into ordinary shares, in three tranches subject to
satisfaction of vesting conditions relating to satisfactory employment performance and continued
employment until the business day after announcement of QANTM'’s full year results in August 2021 (with
respect to 20% of the rights), August 2022 (with respect to 30% of the rights), and August 2023 (with respect
to the balance of the rights). No exercise price is payable on vesting. If the vesting conditions are not
satisfied, or if the rights are not exercised within 6 months of the dates on which the vesting conditions are
satisfied, then the relevant tranche of rights will lapse.

. Rights vesting in FY21: The vesting conditions with respect to the first tranche of these rights, comprised of
20% of these rights, or 38,159 rights, will have been satisfied on 27 August 2021 and these rights will vest as
shares on that date, with no exercise price payable by Mr Cleaver. The remainder of these rights — 80% or
152,638 rights — will lapse with Mr Cleaver’s cessation of employment.

. 104,632 performance rights were issued on 25 March 2021:

o Total value at issue of rights: $112,500, with each right valued at $1.07520, based on the volume-weighted
average price of QANTM shares over the 5 ASX trading days after QANTM Shares went ‘ex-dividend’ in
March 2021 following the declaration of the interim dividend for QANTM in February 2021.
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)
Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan (continued)

. Vesting of rights: The rights vest, and are convertible into ordinary shares, subject to vesting conditions
relating to continued employment and achievement of a performance hurdle based on a compound annual
growth rate of between 5% and 15% in earnings per QANTM ordinary share over the period from 1 July 2020
to 30 June 2023, as set out in the table below:

CAGR of EPS over the Performance period | % of Rights that vest

Below 5% Nil
5% 50%
Between 5% and 15% Straight line pro rata vesting between 50% and
100%
At or above 15% 100%
. Rights vesting in FY21: All of these 104,632 performance rights will lapse with Mr Cleaver’s cessation of

employment on 27 August 2021.

Group Performance

Noting that aspects of KMP remuneration are related to QANTM Group financial performance, including an earnings
per share metric, the following table sets out certain key performance measures since the Group was listed in 2016.
This table reflects the effect of AASB 16 from 1 July 2019:

Financial Revenue EBIT NPAT Dividends per EPS EPS % Share
Year $'000s $'000s $'000s share cents  change (year price
cents on year) 30 June
$
2017 99,520 11,018 7,180 8.9 5.40 - $1.27
2018 101,716 14,817 9,513 71 7.16 33% $1.05
2019 112,170 17,674 11,206 8.3 8.42 18% $1.42
2020 116,568 15,853 9,377 71 7.18 -15% $1.18
2021 119,079 16,416 10,385 7.4 7.71 7% $1.16

FY21 Executive Incentive Outcomes

Short Term Incentive (STI) Plan — Executive KMP

With respect to Mr Dower, as noted in the Remuneration Report included in the 2020 QANTM Annual Report, the board
approved an STl payment of $81,250 (including superannuation) with respect to performance in FY20, which was paid
in September 2020.

With respect to performance in FY21, the board approved an STI payment of $269,480 to Mr Dower. The following table
provides details of the proportion of the maximum STI opportunity achieved with respect to FY21:

Maximum STI % of maximum % of maximum opportunity
Opportunity for CEO opportunity achieved not achieved
50% of TFR 83% 17%

Mr Dower's STl payment was based on a combination of Company financial performance (70% weighting) and
achievement of individual KPIs based on strategic initiatives (30% weighting).

With respect to Mr Cleaver, as noted in the Remuneration Report included in the 2020 QANTM Annual Report, the board
approved an STI payment of $36,000 (including superannuation) with respect to performance in FY20, which was paid
in September 2020.
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)

FY21 Executive Incentive Outcomes (continued)

With respect to performance in FY21, the board approved an STI payment of $67,500. The following table provides
details of the proportion of the maximum STI opportunity achieved with respect to FY21:

Maximum STI Opportunity % of maximum % of maximum opportunity
for CFO opportunity achieved not achieved
30% of TFR 60% 40%

Mr Cleaver's STI payment was based on a combination of Company financial performance (70% weighting) and
achievement of individual KPIs based on strategic initiatives (30% weighting).

The relative proportions of executive KMP remuneration received that are linked to performance are set out below:

Fixed remuneration Remuneration linked to
performance
2021 2020 2021 2020
Executive Director
Mr Craig Dower 61% 78% 39% 22%
Executive Officer
Mr Martin Cleaver 79% 91% 21% 9%

Key terms of Employment Contracts
The key provisions of executive KMP employment contracts relating to remuneration are outlined below:

Term Base salary Notice period for
QANTM to terminate
employment

Executive Director

Mr Craig Dower Commenced 13 January $650,000 ($628,997 6 months
2020, no minimum term exclusive of
superannuation)

Executive Officers

Mr Martin Cleaver Commenced 30 August $375,000 ($351,432 6 months
2017, no minimum term exclusive of
superannuation)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)

Explanatory notes to the table on the preceding page:

1= On an accruals, rather than cash, basis.

2. Relates to car parking,

3. The remuneration received with respect to FY20 relates to Mr Allen’s executive role as Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director, in which role he served until 13 January 2020. In this regard, Mr Allen waived his right to continue
to be paid his salary during a 6 month post-employment restraint period applying from the date of cessation of his
employment as CEO/MD. Mr Allen received a $135,578 payment in lieu of approximately 11 weeks’ of his entitlement
to 6 months’ notice of termination as CEO/MD, and $63,360 for consulting services provided in FY20 after cessation
of employment, including with respect to merger and acquisition activity.

As detailed above in the section headed Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan — FY20, Mr Dower received an allocation of
295,050 performance rights in FY19, based on a value of $1.35570 per share. 20% of these vested as shares in
FY21, with no amount being payable by Mr Dower upon exercise.

5 As detailed above in the section headed Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan — FY20, Mr Cleaver

Mr Cleaver was offered the opportunity to participate in a retention plan in October 2018, to secure his ongoing
service while QANTM was negotiating two potential alternative merger transactions, with IPH Limited and Xenith IP
Group Ltd. Mr Cleaver received a cash payment of $163,200 in October 2019 pursuant to that retention plan. An
accrual of $108,667 was made as at 30 June 2019, and the remaining $54,533 was accrued for FY20.

Bonuses and share-based payments granted as compensation for FY21

Cash bonuses
The table above notes the cash bonuses awarded to KMP with respect to performance in FY21.
Executive Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has implemented a Long Term Incentive Plan for corporate executives, involving the award of performance rights
to executives, each of which is convertible into one QANTM ordinary share upon the satisfaction of vesting conditions which
include continued employment over a vesting period, in some cases satisfaction of conditions related to performance and in some
cases achievement of compound annual growth in eamings per share for QANTM issued shares. Details of the performance
rights issued to KMP (Mr Dower and Mr Cleaver) during FY20 and FY21 are set out earlier in this report.

KMP equity holdings

The number of shares in the Company held at the beginning and end of FY21 by each director and KMP (including shares
held by a close member of the family of that person or an entity over which the person or a family member has, either
directly or indirectly, control, joint control or significant influence) are set out below.

Received on

Granted as exercise of
Balance at compensation rights during Other changes Balance at
1 July 2020 during the year the year during the year 30 June 2021
Number of Number of Number or Number of Number of
Name ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares
Mr Richard England 135,134 - - - 135,134
Ms Abigail Cheadle 45,045 - - - 45,0452
Mr Cameron Judson 45,044 - - - 45,0442
Ms Sonia Petering 45,044 - - - 45,044
Mr Leon Allen 2,037,227 - - - 2,037,227
Mr Craig Dower" - - 59,010 - 59,010
Mr Martin Cleaver 6,000 - - 15,0003 21,000
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8. Remuneration Report (Audited) (continued)

Explanatory notes to the table on preceding page:

1 Mr Dower received an allocation of 295,050 performance rights in June 2020, which are subject to vesting
conditions as detailed above in the section headed Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan — FY20. Of these, 59,010
vested and were converted into QANTM ordinary shares during FY21.

2 These were the numbers of shares held as at the dates of retirement as a QANTM non-executive director on
27 November 2020 (for Ms Cheadle) and 21 May 2021 (for Mr Judson).

3 Mr Cleaver acquired 15,000 shares during the trading window opening in September 2020, following the
announcement of QANTM’s full year results for FY20.

9. Dividends paid or recommended

The following dividends were paid or declared during the period:

A final fully franked ordinary dividend of 3.8 cents per share was paid on 1 October 2020: $ 5,103,000.

An interim fully franked ordinary dividend of 4.0 cents per share was paid on 31 March 2021: $ 5,426,000.

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2021, the directors resolved to approve a fully franked final dividend of 3.4 cents
per share. The record date will be 2 September 2021 and the dividend is scheduled to be paid on 7 October 2021. As
such the dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The total dividend to be paid is $4.6
million (2020: $5.1 million).

10.Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or could
significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future
financial years.

11.Future developments and results

A summary of the business strategy, results outlook and priorities is provided at item 6 of this Directors report.

12.Environmental issues

The Group's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth
or of a state or territory of Australia.

13.Proceedings on behalf of the Company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on
behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all of those proceedings.
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14.Rounding of amounts

The Company has applied the relief available to it under AS/C Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports)
Instrument 2016/191. Accordingly, amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand
dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

15.Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors of the Company,
the Company secretaries and all executive officers of the Company and of any related body corporate against a liability
that could be incurred as such a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act
2001.

The directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid in respect

of the directors’ and officers’ liability and legal expenses insurance contracts as such disclosure is prohibited under the

terms of the contract.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law,

indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the Company or of any related body corporate against a liability

incurred as such an officer or auditor.

16.Non-audit services

There were no amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year.

17.Auditor's independence declaration

The auditor's independence declaration, in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended

30 June 2021, has been received and can be found on page 49 of the financial report.
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18.Corporate Governance

The board and management of QANTM are committed to conducting the Group’s business in an ethical manner and in
accordance with the highest standards of corporate governance. The Company has adopted and has substantially
complied with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (Fourth Edition) (the
Recommendations) to the extent appropriate to the size and nature of the Group’s operations.

The Company has prepared a statement which sets out the corporate governance practices that were in operation
throughout the financial year for the Company, identifies any Recommendations that have not been followed and provides
reasons for not following such Recommendations (Corporate Governance Statement).

The Corporate Governance Statement approved by the board will be lodged together with an Appendix 4G at the same
time or prior to the lodgement of the Company’s Annual Report with the ASX.

This directors’ report, incorporating the remuneration report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

4 ;
7 5

Chairman: ...
Richard England

Dated this 26th day of August 2021
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AUDITOR’'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

-
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e OI e. ABN 74 490 121 060
477 Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC, 3000

Australia

Phone: +61 3 9671 7000
www.deloitte.com.au

26 August 2021

The Board of Directors

QANTM Intellectual Property Limited
Level 15, 1 Nicholson Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

Dear Board Members
Auditor’s Independence Declaration to QANTM Intellectual Property Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide the following declaration of
independence to the directors of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial report of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited for the financial
year ended 30 June 2021, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions
of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours faithfully

Al Fppe Toeta Totnemdo—
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
A

Chris Biermann

Partner
Chartered Accountants

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.
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Note
Service Charges
Associate Charges

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 3(a)

Other income 3(b)
Employee benefits expenses:
- ordinary
- related to business acquisition
Recoverable expenses
Occupancy expenses
Technology expenses
Business acquisition expenses
Other expenses 4

Earnings before depreciation and amortisation, finance costs and income tax
Depreciation and amortisation

Earnings before finance costs and income tax
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense 5(a)

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net profit / (loss) attributable to:
Members of the parent entity
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Members of the parent entity
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents) 21
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 21

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
92,355 90,275
26,724 26,293
119,079 116,568
1,869 2,116
(57,348) (54,242)
- (1,860)
(25,350) (24,660)
(1,959) (2,040)
(5,526) (3,666)
(379) (1,402)
(6,675) (8,201)
23,711 22,613
(7,295) (6,760)
16,416 15,853
(1,610) (1,535)
14,806 14,318
(4,421) (4,941)
10,385 9,377
21 (103)
10,406 9,274
10,473 9,563
(88) (186)
10,385 9,377
10,494 9,460
(88) (186)
10,406 9,274
7.7 7.18
7.68 7.17



AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Borrowings

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities
Current income tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Borrowings

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves
Non-controlling interest
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

IP

2021 2020
$°000 $°000

Note
6 5,722 6,163
7 37,235 33,724
8 1,925 1,717
44,882 41,604
9 2,276 2,404
10 13,218 15,772
11 74,659 75,666
90,153 93,842
135,035 135,446
12 13,527 11,217
13 7,766 6,510
14 1,995 2,447
15 4,467 4,306
16 751 690
29 990
28,535 26,160
13 413 289
14 19,868 21,121
15 10,835 13,634
16 - 575
17 2,554 2,473
33,670 38,092
62,205 64,252
72,830 71,194
18 297,408 295,510
19 (222,396) (222,278)
(274) (186)
(1,908) (1,852)
72,830 71,194

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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2021

Balance at 1 July 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the
period

Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners

Shares issued during the year

Issued capital from Cotters Acquisition
Dividends paid

Performance rights

Share based payment

Balance at 30 June 2021

2020

Balance at 1 July 2019
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners

Shares issued during the year

Deferred share consideration for Cotters
Acquisition

Dividends paid
Share based payment

Balance at 30 June 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Issued Reorganisation Acquisition Share Based Foreign Non- Accumulated Total
Capital Reserve Reserve Payment Currency Controlling Losses
Reserve Translation Interest
Reserve

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
295,510 (222,856) 655 26 (103) (186) (1,852) 71,194
- - - - - (88) 10,473 10,385
- - - - 21 - - 21
- - - - 21 (88) 10,473 10,406
1,413 - - - - - - 1,413
385 - (385) - - - - -
- - - - - - (10,529) (10,529)
100 - - (100) - - - -
- - - 346 - - - 346
297,408 (222,856) 270 272 (82) (274) (1,908) 72,830

Issued Reorganisation Acquisition Share Based Foreign Non- Accumulated Total

Capital Reserve Reserve Payment Currency Controlling Losses
Reserve Translation Interest
Reserve

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
294,075 (222,856) - - - (638) 70,581
- - - - - (186) 9,563 9,377
- - - - (103) - - (103)
- - - - (103) (186) 9,563 9,274
1,435 - - - - - - 1,435
- - 655 - - - - 655
- - - - - - (10,777) (10,777)
- - - 26 - - - 26
295,510 (222,856) 655 26 (103) (186) (1,852) 71,194




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Business acquisition related remuneration
Interest and costs of finance paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets

Payments to acquire investments

Business acquisition related costs

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

IP

2021 2020
$’000 $°000

Note
123,040 122,237
(96,855) (97,319)
- (2,811)
(933) (769)
(5,426) (6,254)
32(a) 19,826 15,084
9 (816) (1,085)
11 (837) (128)
(715) (2,665)
(379) (1,402)
(2,747) (5,260)
32(b) 20,556 19,248
32(b) (22,306) (8,000)
32(b) (5,200) (5,347)
(10,529) (10,777)
(17,479) (4,876)
(400) 4,948
(41) (34)
6,163 1,181
6 5,722 6,163

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

General Information

The financial statements cover QANTM Intellectual Property Limited as a Group, consisting of QANTM Intellectual
Property Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year.

QANTM Intellectual Property Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
The Group is a for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for for-profit
oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

A description of the nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are included in the Directors' report, which
is not part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of Directors, on the same date as the
Director’s report.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals and historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. The financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars (unless otherwise noted), which is QANTM's functional and presentation currency.

(a) Group Reorganisation Reserve

The reserve relates to transactions that have historically been accounted for as a group reorganisation of entities
under common control (Davies Collison Cave Pty Ltd, Davies Collison Law Pty Ltd and Davies Collison Cave Asia
Pte Ltd) at predecessor carrying value. The assets and liabilities of these entities have not been remeasured at
fair value, nor has any goodwill arisen. The difference between the fair value of consideration given and the
carrying values of the assets and liabilities acquired by QANTM Intellectual Property Limited has been recognised
within equity as part of the "Group Reorganisation Reserve".

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all the assets, liabilities and results of the parent QANTM
Intellectual Property Limited and all of the subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities the parent controls. The parent
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
can affect those returns through its power over the entity. A list of the subsidiaries is provided in Note 26.

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financial statements of the Group
from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a subsidiary is discontinued from
the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions
between group entities are fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity of the accounting policies adopted by the
Group.
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1  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Principles of Consolidation (continued)

Equity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group are presented as “non-controlling
interests”. The Group initially recognises non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests in
subsidiaries and are entitled to a proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net assets on liquidation at either fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, non-controlling interests are attributed their share of profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income. Non-controlling interests are shown separately within the equity section of the statement
of financial position and statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Business Combinations
Business combinations occur where QANTM obtains control over one or more businesses.

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination involving
entities or businesses under common control. The business combination will be accounted for from the date that
control is obtained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recognised
(subject to certain limited exemptions).

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement is also included. After initial recognition, contingent consideration classified
as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is remeasured in each reporting period to fair value, recognising any change to
fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can be identified as existing at acquisition date.

All transaction costs incurred in relation to business combinations, other than those associated with the issue of a
financial instrument, are recognised as expenses in profit or loss when incurred.

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.
Goodwill

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum
of:

e the consideration transferred;

e any non-controlling interest (determined under either the full goodwill or proportionate interest method); and

e the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest; over the acquisition date fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired.

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the acquisition date
fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the separate financial
statements.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
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1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Business Combinations (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored and not larger than an operating
segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity
disposed of.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions and do not affect the carrying amounts of goodwill.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised so as to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled, in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised in accordance with the following five-step process:

Identifying the contract with the customer;

Identifying the performance obligations in the contract;

Determining the transaction price;

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
Recognising revenue as and when the performance obligations are satisfied.

aobkwbd =

The Group generate revenue by providing services associated with the creation, protection, commercialisation,
enforcement and management of intellectual property (IP) rights. Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers
comprises Service Charges and Associate Charges.

Service Charges

Service Charge revenue is earned by providing professional services to clients for ongoing protection of intellectual
property.

Service Charge revenue received from the filing of patent or trademark with IP Australia, examination, advisory,
grant and maintenance/renewal services have performance obligations that are satisfied at a point in time. Upon
completion of these performance obligations, the Group is entitled to payment for services performed.

Service Charge revenue received from examination responses, litigation and advisory services have performance
obligations that are satisfied over time. Upon completion of these performance obligations, the Group is entitled
to payment for services performed.

Revenue arising from services that relate to performance obligations satisfied over time are recognised on a
progressive basis using the input method. The input method is used by assessing the time and costs incurred on
an engagement.

There is no significant financing component because sales are made within a credit terms of 30 days.
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1  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) Revenue Recognition (continued)

Associate Charges

Associate Charge revenue includes revenue from recharging, as Principal, the cost of arranging for intellectual
property protection in other jurisdictions and revenue from recharging the fees of barristers and other experts.
Associate Charge revenue performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time. Upon completion of these
performance obligations, the Group is entitled to payment for services performed.

There is no significant financing component because sales are made within a credit terms of 30 days.

Interest Revenue

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
(e) Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of QANTM, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares assumed to have been issued for no
consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(f) Recoverable Expenses

Recoverable expenses are payments such as to foreign agents that lodge applications in countries primarily
outside of those countries in which the Group acts directly before the national intellectual property office, are
recognised as an expense as incurred and, to the extent recoverable, as revenue.

(9) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Group measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis,
depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
considers the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of AASB 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of AASB 16 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as value in use in AASB 136 'Impairment of Assets'.
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1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

U]

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Foreign currency transactions and balances

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each Group entity are expressed in Australian dollars ('$'), which
is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars as follows:

. income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used;

. assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the balance date; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

Income Tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-consolidated group.
Consequently, all members of the tax-consolidated group will be treated as a single entity for Australian income
tax purposes. The head company of the tax consolidated group will be QANTM Intellectual Property Limited.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

U]

Income Tax (continued)

Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the
members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the
tax consolidated group using the 'separate taxpayer within group' approach.

Current tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of the
members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised by the Company (parent in the tax-consolidated group).

Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the
taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Adjustments are made for transactions and events occurring within
the tax-consolidated group that do not give rise to a tax consequence for the group or that have a different tax
consequence at the head entity level of the group.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax base of those items. Adjustments are made for transactions and
events occurring within the tax-consolidated group that do not give rise to a tax consequence for the Group or that
have a different tax consequence at the head entity level of the Group.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible
temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised.

However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them
arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than because of a business combination) which
affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit. Furthermore, a deferred tax liability is not recognised in
relation to taxable temporary differences arising from goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments except where the
Group can control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with these investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when
the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the way the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and Deferred Tax for the Period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.
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1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

U]

1)

(k)

Income Tax (continued)
Current and Deferred Tax for the Period (continued)

The change in legal structure on listing caused a change in the tax status of the operations. This change in tax
status has been included in profit and loss for the period. Transactions and events with tax consequences which
are recognised outside of the profit and loss statement, the impact of the change in tax status is also recognised
outside of the profit and loss statement.

Deferred Tax Measurement Relating to Indefinite Life Intangible Assets

The IFRS Interpretations Committee had issued its agenda decision relating to the expected manner of recovery
of indefinite life intangible assets. The Committee was asked to clarify how an entity determines the expected
manner of recovery of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life for deferred tax measurement purposes.
The Committee indicated that the fact that an entity does not amortise an indefinite life intangible asset does not
necessarily mean that the carrying amount will be recovered only through sale and not use. Therefore the entity
should determine the expected manner of recovery of the carrying amount of the intangible asset. The Group has
implemented this guidance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, short term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less held at call with financial institutions.

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
and are presented within current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Group commits itself to either the
purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs,
except where the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are
expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine
fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts
with Customers.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:
e amortised cost; or
e fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit or loss if the financial liability is:

e acontingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business Combinations
applies;

e held for trading; or
initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability, that is, it is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net carrying
amount at initial recognition.

A financial liability is held for trading if it is:

¢ incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;

e part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or

¢ aderivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a financial guarantee contract or a derivative
that is in an effective hedging relationship).

Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship.

A financial liability cannot be reclassified.
Financial Assets

Financial assets are subsequently measured at:

e amortised cost;

e fair value through other comprehensive income; or
e fair value through profit or loss.

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:
e the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and
e the business model for managing the financial assets.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income:

e the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and

o the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows collection and the
selling of the financial asset.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the measurement conditions of amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

e it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as an
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases;

e itis in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the
groupings is documented appropriately, so the performance of the financial liability that is part of a group of
financial liabilities or financial assets can be managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and

e itis a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise
required by the contract.

Derecognition

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the
statement of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a
substantial modification to the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability
and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is
transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

All of the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of a financial asset:

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;

e all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and
the Group no longer controls the asset (i.e. it has no practical ability to make unilateral decisions to sell the
asset to a third party).

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity which the Group elected to classify under fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

U]

Financial Instruments (continued)
Impairment

Impairment of financial assets is recognised based on the lifetime expected credit loss which is determined when
the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. In order to determine whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the entity compares the risk of default
as at the reporting date with risk of default as at initial recognition using reasonable and supportable data, unless
the financial asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the reporting date.

For trade and other receivables, the simplified approach is used, which requires recognition of a loss allowance
based on the lifetime expected credit losses. As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix based
on historical information and adjusted for forward looking estimates in order to determine the lifetime expected
credit losses

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Group, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life.

The estimated useful lives used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Class of fixed asset Estimated useful lives
Leasehold improvements Term of lease
Office Equipment 5-15 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m)

Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, are measured at their fair value at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortised.
Instead, goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired and it is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses
on goodwill are taken to profit and loss and not subsequently reversed.

Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Customer Relationships

Customer relationships are the assessed value of the supply of goods and services that exist at the date of
acquisition. In valuing customer relationships, consideration is given to historic customer retention and decay
statistics, projected future cash flows and appropriate capital charges.

Customer relationships are amortised over a period of between 16 and 24 years. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Brand Names
Brand names are intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately and are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

Brand names are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and when there are indicators of impairment.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units or groups of cash generating units, which represent the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored but where such level is not larger than an operating segment. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity sold.

Amortisation rates:

Class of intangibles Amortisation rate Amortisation basis
Client relationships 16 - 24 years Straight line
Software 5 years Straight line

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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(m)

(n)

(o)

Intangibles (continued)
Implementation of IFRIC agenda decision and new accounting policy

During the year, the Company revised its accounting policy in relation to upfront configuration and customisation
costs incurred in implementing SaaS arrangements in response to the IFRIC agenda decision clarifying its
interpretation of how current accounting standards apply to these types of arrangements. The new accounting
policy is presented below.

Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) arrangements

SaaS arrangements are service contracts providing the Company with the right to access the cloud provider's
application software over the contract period. Costs incurred to configure or customise, and the ongoing fees to
obtain access to the cloud provider's application software, are recognised as operating expenses when the
services are received.

Some of these costs incurred are for the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or creates
additional capability to, existing on-premise systems and meets the definition of and recognition criteria for an
intangible asset. These costs are recognised as intangible software assets and amortised over the useful life of
the software on a straight-line basis. The useful lives of the assets are reviewed at least at the end of each
financial year, and any change accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

In a contract where the cloud provider provides both the SaaS configuration and customisation, and the SaaS
access over the contract term, judgement is required to determine whether these services are distinct from each
other or not, and therefore, whether the configuration and customisation costs incurred are expensed as the
software is configured or customised (i.e. upfront), or amortised over the SaaS contract term. Specifically, where
the configuration and customisation activities significantly modify or customise the cloud software, these activities
will not be distinct from the access to the cloud software over the contract term. Judgement needs to be applied
in determining whether the degree of customisation and modification of the cloud-based software that would be
deemed significant

The impact of this agenda decision has been incorporated into the financial report and did not have a material
impact. Refer to note 1 (x) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements.

Impairment of Assets

Goodwill and other assets that have an indefinite useful life are not amortised but are tested annually for
impairment in accordance with AASB 136 'Impairment of Assets'. Assets subject to annual depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances arise that indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is defined as the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o)

(P)

Provisions

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Leases

Initially the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows:

— fixed lease payments less any lease incentives;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date

— the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

— the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;

— lease payments under extension options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

— the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

— the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change
in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

— alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(P

(a)

Leases (continued)
The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under AASB 137. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-
use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If
a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is amortised over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The amortisation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies AASB 136 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy (as outlined in the financial report for
the annual reporting period.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and
the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Other expenses” in profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, AASB 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this
practical expedient. For a contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Employee Benefits

Short and Long-Term Employee Benefit

Provision is made for the Group’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick
leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the
obligation is settled. The Group’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick
leave are recognised as part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021

IP

67



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Employee Benefits (continued)

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the expected future payments
to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels,
durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms
of the obligations. Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the net change
in the obligation is recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefits expense.

The Group’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its statement
of financial position, except where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.

Defined Contribution Superannuation Benefits

All employees of the Group receive defined contribution superannuation entitiements, for which the Group pays
the fixed superannuation guarantee contribution (currently 9.5 per cent of the employee’s average ordinary salary)
to the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All contributions in respect of employees’ defined contribution
entittements are recognised as an expense when they become payable. The Group’s obligation with respect to
employees’ defined contribution entitiements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid superannuation guarantee
contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid superannuation guarantee contributions
are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled and are presented
as current liabilities in the Group’s statement of financial position.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Share Based Payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

®

(u)

v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing Costs

All borrowing costs are amortised over the term of the borrowings.
Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when declared during the financial year and no longer at the discretion of the Company.

Rounding of Amounts

s

The Company has applied the relief available to it under ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors
Reports) Instrument 2016/191. Accordingly, amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its
judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various
factors, including expectations of future events; management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Key Judgement and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Life Intangible Assets

The Group tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment, whether
goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 1(n). Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the directors
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. Details of the impairment testing are in Note 11.

Lease term and option to extend under AASB 16

The lease term is defined as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with both periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and also periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The decision on whether
or not the options to extend are reasonably going to be exercised is a key management judgement that the Group
will make. The Group determines the likeliness to exercise on a lease-by-lease basis, looking at various factors
such as which assets are strategic and which are key to the future strategy of the Group.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(x)

(v)

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)
Key Judgement and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Covid-19

Management have considered the impact of Covid-19 and the current economic environment on the judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and adjusted these where
appropriate.

In particular, management has considered the impact of Covid-19 on the carrying values of its trade receivables
(refer Note 7) and determined that there was no significant impact. Management also considered the impact of
Covid-19 on its cash flow forecasts used for its impairment assessments of goodwill and other intangible assets
(refer Note 11) and the company’s going concern assessment.

Configuration costs incurred in implementing SaaS arrangements.

Note 1(m) describes the entity’s accounting policy in respect of customisation and configuration costs incurred in
implementing SaaS arrangements. In applying the entity’s accounting policy, the directors made the following key
judgements that have had the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Determination whether configuration and customisation services are distinct from the SaaS access

Costs incurred to configure or customise the cloud provider's application software are recognised as operating
expenses when the services are received. In a contract where the cloud provider provides both the SaaS
configuration and customisation, and the SaaS access over the contract term, the directors applied judgement to
determine whether these services are distinct from each other or not, and therefore, whether the configuration
and customisation costs incurred are expensed as the software is configured or customised (i.e. upfront), or over
the SaaS contract term.

Specifically, where the configuration and customisation activities significantly modify or customise the cloud
software, these activities will not be distinct from the access to the cloud software over the contract term.
Judgement has been applied in determining whether the degree of customisation and modification of the cloud-
based software that would be deemed significant. During the year, the Company recognised $209,000 (2020: $nil)
as prepayments in respect of customisation and configuration activities undertaken in implementing SaaS
arrangements which are considered not to be distinct from the access to the SaaS access over the contract term.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
AASB 2020-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Interest rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

AASB 2020-8 addresses issues that may affect financial reporting during the interest rate benchmark reform,
including the effect of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging relations resulting from the replacement of an
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate.

The amendments complement AASB 2019-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform and focus on the effects on financial statements when an entity replaces the existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform.

The amendments are effective for annual periods begging on or after 1 January, with early application permitted.

The directors of QANTM do not anticipate that the amendments will have a material impact on the Group.
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2  Segment Information
Basis for segmentation

AASB 8 requires operating segments to be identified based on internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

The Group operates in two geographic locations, which are its reportable segments. The Group has identified its
operating segments based on geographical locations being Australia and Asia.

AUSTRALIA ASIA TOTAL
Full-year ended 2021 2020' 2021 2020' 2021 2020'

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Service Charges 86,906 84,346 5,449 5,929 92,355 90,275
Associate Charges 24,631 24,104 2,093 2,189 26,724 26,293
Total Revenue 111,537 108,450 7,542 8,118 119,079 116,568
Other Income 1,661 2,066 208 50 1,869 2,116
Recoverable Expenses (23,283) (22,478) (2,067) (2,182) (25,350) (24,660)
Net Revenue 89,915 88,038 5,683 5,986 95,598 94,024
Overheads (65,463) (67,236) (4,074) (4,631) (69,537) (71,867)
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation 24,452 20,802 1,609 1,355 26,061 22,157
Depreciation (706) (509) (238) (154) (944) (663)
Amortisation (6,086) (1,309) (265) (191) (6,351) (1,500)
Segment profit before finance costs and
income tax 17,660 18,984 1,106 1,010 18,766 19,994
Adjustments to reconcile to statutory profit
Unallocated adjustments (2,350) (4,141)
Statutory profit before finance costs and
income tax 16,416 15,853
Finance costs — Interest (1,610) (1,535)
Profit for the period before income tax 14,806 14,318

Major customers

No single customer contributed 10 per cent or more of the Group’s revenue during either the year-ended 30 June 2021 or 30
June 2020.

' Presented in line with the prior year financial report being before consideration of AASB 16 Leases

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 71



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3(a) Revenue from Contracts Contract

Disaggregated revenue

The Group has disaggregated revenue into various categories in the following table. The revenue is disaggregated by

geographical market, service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Geographical markets
Australia
Asia

Service Lines
Service Charges
Associate Charges

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

3(b) Other income
Other income

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
111,537 108,450
7,542 8,118
119,079 116,568
92,355 90,275
26,724 26,293
119,079 116,568
68,191 66,977
50,888 49,591
119,079 116,568
1,869 2,116
1,869 2,116

Other income mainly comprises income received in connection with DCC’s strategic alliance with CPA Global Limited (CPA).
CPA specialises in the provision of patent, design and trademark renewal and maintenance services. Under the agreement
with CPA, where DCC clients elect to obtain these services from CPA, DCC receives a commission based on the fees these

clients generate for CPA.
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5

Note

Other Expenses

The result for the year includes the following other expenses:

Travel and entertainment
Marketing

Foreign exchange loss
Insurance expense
Other expenses

Income Tax Expense

(@)

(b)

(c)

The major components of tax expense comprise:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense 5(b)

Over / under provision from previous years

Income tax expense 5(c)
Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:

(Increase) / decrease in deferred tax asset
Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liability

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses calculated at 30%
Tax effect of differential corporate tax rate
Add tax effect of:

- Non-deductible expenses

- Other
Less tax effect of:

- Non-assessable income

Income tax expense

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows:

IP

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
231 1,704
947 986
1,136 811
1,524 1,214
2,837 3,486
6,675 8,201
4,465 5,301
81 125
(125) (485)
4,421 4,941
1,063 (4,072)
(982) 4,197
81 125
14,806 14,318
4,442 4,295
(53) (83)
10 684
22 45
4,421 4,941
30% 35%
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Note
5 Income Tax Expense (continued)
(d) Unrecognised deferred tax asset:
The amount of temporary differences and unused capital tax losses for which
no deferred tax asset has been recognised.
Potential tax benefit at 30 per cent (2020: 30 per cent) 16,062 16,062
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised to the extent that it is not
probable that future taxable capital profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised.
6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 10 10
Cash at bank 5,712 6,153
5,722 6,163
7 Trade and Other Receivables
CURRENT
Trade receivables 7(a) 37,512 33,368
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables 7(b) (655) (752)
36,857 32,616
Other receivables 378 1,108
Total current trade and other receivables 37,235 33,724
(a) Aged analysis
The ageing analysis of current trade receivables is as follows:
0-30 days 19,134 15,452
31-60 days 5,502 5,861
61-90 days (past due not impaired) 3,887 3,885
91+ days (past due not impaired) 8,334 7,418
91+ days (past due and impaired) 655 752
37,512 33,368
(b) Impairment of trade receivables
Reconciliation of changes in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year 752 568
Additional provisions recognised 303 701
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (400) (517)
Balance at end of the year 655 752
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Note
Other assets
CURRENT
Prepayments 1,920 1,717
Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold improvements
At cost 2,079 2,076
Accumulated depreciation (2,031) (1,981)
Net carrying value of leasehold improvements 48 95
Office equipment
At cost 5,541 4,728
Accumulated depreciation (3,313) (2,419)
Net carrying value office equipment 2,228 2,309
Total property, plant and equipment 2,276 2,404

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and

the end of the current financial year:

Note Assets

Leasehold Office under
Improvements  Equipment finance Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 July 2019 168 1,818 544 2,530
Additions at cost 4 1,061 - 1,065
Additions through business combinations 28 - 16 - 16
Transfer to right-of-use assets 10 - - (544) (544)
Depreciation expense (77) (586) - (663)
Closing balance at 30 June 2020 95 2,309 - 2,404

2021

Opening balance at 1 July 2020 95 2,309 - 2,404
Additions at cost 3 813 - 816
Disposals - written down value - - - -
Depreciation expense (50) (894) - (944)
Closing balance at 30 June 2021 48 2,228 - 2,276
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Note
10 Right-of-use asset
Leased buildings

Right-of-use asset 21,778 19,825
Accumulated amortisation (8,628) (4,322)
13,150 15,503

Leased motor vehicles
Right-of-use asset 544 544
Accumulated amortisation (476) (275)
68 269
Total Right-of-use asset 13,218 15,772

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of right-of-use asset
Leased Lease motor

buildings vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
2020
Recognised on initial application of AASB 16 (previously classified as
operating leases / finance lease under AASB 117) 19,468 544 20,012
Foreign currency translation adjustment to opening balance (71) - (71)
Additions 428 - 428
Amortisation (4,322) (275) (4,597)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2020 15,503 269 15,772
2021
Opening balance as at 1 July 2020 15,503 269 15,772
Foreign currency translation adjustment to opening balance (53) - (53)
Additions 2,006 - 2,006
Amortisation (4,306) (201) (4,507)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2021 13,150 68 13,218

The Group leases several buildings. The average lease term is 6 years, with a remaining average lease term of 2
years. The right-of-use asset addition of $2,006,000 relates to the new DDC Singapore office head lease.

The Group does not have any leases which contain variable lease payments.

(b) AASB 16 related amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Amortisation charge related to right-of-use assets (4,507) (4,597)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (under finance costs) (677) (766)
Short-term lease expenses - (30)
Total expenses recognised in the statement of profit loss (5,184) (5,393)
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Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Balance at beginning of period

Acquisitions through business combinations
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying value of goodwill

Brand names

Balance at beginning of period

Acquisitions through business combinations
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying value of brand names

Client relationships

Balance at beginning of period

Acquisitions through business combinations
Accumulated amortisation bought forward
Amortisation charge for the period

Net carrying value of client relationships
Software

Balance at beginning of period

Additions at cost

Acquisitions through business combinations
Accumulated amortisation bought forward
Amortisation charge for the period

Net carrying value of software

Total Intangibles

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets

Note
2020
Opening balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Additions through business
combinations 28

Amortisation

Closing balance at 30 June 2020

2021

Opening balance at 1 July 2020
Additions

Amortisation

Closing balance at 30 June 2021

IP

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Note

48,793 45,836
28 - 2,957
48,793 48,793
4,521 3,518
28 - 1,003
4,521 4,521
25,328 22,101
28 - 3,227
(4,074) (2,933)
(1,274) (1,141)
19,980 21,254
1,731 1,603
837 128
(633) (274)
(570) (359)
1,365 1,098
74,659 75,666

Brand Client
Goodwill Name Relationship Software Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
45,836 3,518 19,168 1,329 69,851
- - - 128 128
2,957 1,003 3,227 - 7,187
- - (1,141) (359) (1,500)
48,793 4,521 21,254 1,098 75,666
48,793 4,521 21,254 1,098 75,666
- - - 837 837
- - (1,274) (570) (1,844)
48,793 4,521 19,980 1,365 74,659
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11

Intangible Assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Cash-Generating Unit

The following intangible assets including indefinite life intangible assets goodwill and brand names are allocated
to the following cash generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing purposes:

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
FPA
Goodwill 45,836 45,836
Brand names 2,700 2,700
Customer relationships (at amortised cost) 14,611 15,576
Software (at amortised cost) 87 295
63,234 64,407
AFIP
Brand names 818 818
Customer relationships (at amortised cost) 2,276 2,451
Software (at amortised cost) 40 131
3,134 3,400
Cotters
Goodwill 2,957 2,957
Brand names 1,003 1,003
Customer relationships (at amortised cost) 3,093 3,227
7,053 7,187

Impairment Testing

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group performs its impairment testing at least annually
for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. More frequent reviews are performed for indications of impairment
of all the Group’s assets including customer relationships and operating assets.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group has evaluated whether the recoverable amounts
of the FPA, AFIP and Cotters CGUs exceeds their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCD) and its value in use (VIU). VIU is the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. The potential impact of COVID has been factored in to the future
cash flow forecasts. The VIU model has been used to test the impairment of intangible assets, including goodwill.

Key Assumptions

FPA

The recoverable amount of the FPA CGU is based on a VIU calculation which projects future cash flows over a
five year period with the period beyond five years extrapolated using an estimated growth rate. The cash flows are
discounted at an appropriate rate to derive the recoverable amount. The following key assumptions were used:

e revenue toincrease by 4.1 per cent for FY2022, increase by 4.0 per cent from FY2023 to FY2024 and increase
by 3.5 per cent from FY2025 to FY2026;

e overhead costs based on long term growth rate of 2.5 per cent; and

e in the period beyond 5 years a long-term growth rate of 2.5 per cent; and

e post-tax discount rate of 11.5 per cent.

The assumptions are based on the Group’s forecast operating and financial performance of FPA reflecting prior
performance, current growth rate achieved and the historic growth of patent applications in Australia. The discount
rate is derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for varying risk profiles. The key
assumptions used in the VIU calculations represent management's best estimate at 30 June 2021.
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11 Intangible Assets (continued)

(c) Impairment Testing (continued)

Key Assumptions (continued)
FPA (continued)

Based on the recoverable amount of the FPA CGU exceeding its aggregate carrying amount at 30 June 2021
there was no impairment charge.

Management’s sensitivity analysis has determined that no impairment charge would arise as a result of any
reasonable change in key assumption.

AFIP

The recoverable amount of the AFIP CGU is based on a VIU calculation which projects future cash flows over a
five year period with the period beyond five years extrapolated using an estimated growth rate. The cash flows are
discounted at an appropriate rate to derive the recoverable amount. The following key assumptions were used:

e revenue to increase 4.0 per cent from FY2022 to FY202 and an increase of 3.5 per cent from FY2025 to
FY2026;

e in the period beyond five years a long-term growth rate of 2.5 per cent;
overhead costs based on long term growth rate of 2.5 per cent; and
post-tax discount rate of 14.5 per cent.

The assumptions are based on the Group’s forecast operating and financial performance of AFIP reflecting prior
performance, current growth rate achieved and the historic growth of patent applications in Malaysia. The discount
rate is derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for varying risk profiles. The key
assumptions used in the VIU calculations represent management's best estimate at 30 June 2021.

Based on the recoverable amount of the AFIP CGU exceeding its aggregate carrying amount at 30 June 2021
there was no impairment charge.

Management's sensitivity analysis has determined that no impairment charge would arise as a result of any
reasonable change in key assumption.

Cotters

The recoverable amount of the Cotters CGU is based on a VIU calculation which projects future cash flows over
a five year period with the period beyond five years extrapolated using an estimated growth rate. The cash flows
are discounted at an appropriate rate to derive the recoverable amount. The following key assumptions were used:

e revenue to increase 12.5 per cent for FY2022, increase of 10.0 per cent from FY2023 to FY2025, increase of
8.0 per cent for FY2026;

e in the period beyond five years a long-term growth rate of 2.5 per cent;
overhead costs based on long term growth rate of 2.5 per cent; and
post-tax discount rate of 11.5 per cent.

The assumptions are based on the Group’s forecast operating and financial performance of Cotters reflecting prior
performance, current growth rate achieved and the historic growth of patent applications in Australia. The discount
rate is derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for varying risk profiles. The key
assumptions used in the VIU calculations represent management's best estimate at 30 June 2021.

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the key assumptions
used to determine the recoverable amount for the Cotters’ CGU to which goodwill is allocated. The directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key revenue growth rate assumption on which the recoverable
amount of Cotters’ CGU is based may cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.

The impairment charge that would result in the Cotters’ CGU as a result of the following change in an assumption:

e Holding all assumptions constant, a reduction in the forecast revenue growth rates in FY23 — FY25 from 10
per cent to 8 per cent would lead to an impairment charge of $113,000.

Based on the recoverable amount of the Cotters CGU exceeding its aggregate carrying amount at 30 June 2021
there was no impairment charge.”
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
12 Trade and Other Payables
CURRENT
Trade payables 7,992 5714
GST payable 84 132
Other payables and accruals 5,451 5,371
Total current trade and other payables 13,527 11,217

The average credit period on trade and other payables (excluding GST payable) is 90 days. No interest is payable on
outstanding payables during this period.

13 Provisions

CURRENT

Employee benefits 7,766 6,510
Total current provisions 7,766 6,510
NON-CURRENT

Employee benefits 413 289
Total non-current provisions 413 289

(a) Movement in Carrying Amounts

Lease

Employee Incentive
Benefits Provisions Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 July 2019 8,638 2,473 11,111
Additional provisions 1,330 - 1,330
Provisions used (3,169) - (3,169)
Transfer to right-of-use asset - (2,473) (2,473)
Closing balance at 30 June 2020 6,799 - 6,799

2021

Opening balance at 1 July 2020 6,799 - 6,799
Additional provisions 3,388 - 3,388
Provisions used (2,008) - (2,008)
Closing balance at 30 June 2021 8,179 - 8,179
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Note
14 Borrowings
CURRENT
Bank loans 14(b) 1,995 2,447
Total current borrowings 1,995 2,447
NON-CURRENT
Bank loans 14(b) 19,868 21,121
Total non-current borrowings 19,868 21,121
Total borrowings 21,863 23,568
(a) Total Current and Non-Current Secured Borrowings
Bank loans 21,863 23,568
21,863 23,568

(b)

(c)

Summary of Borrowing Arrangements

During the year the Group entered into a new banking facility agreement with HSBC consisting of:
e US$25.5 million acquisition facility;
e  A$20 million multi-currency revolving facility;
e A$5 million overdraft facility; and
e A$4.3 million multi-option facility.

The facilities have a maturity date of 16 December 2023. All facilities have a variable interest rate based on bank
bill swap rate (BBSY) plus a margin. In addition, commitment and line fees calculated based on the relevant limit
are payable on the facilities.

The agreement under which the facilities have been made available contains financial covenants typical for
facilities of this nature. The covenants which are tested quarterly (unless otherwise specified in the facility
agreement), relate to the net leverage ratio, borrowing base ratio, debt service cover ratio, gearing ratio and current
ratio. The Company has operated within these covenants during the period.

2021 2020

$°000 $°000

Amount unutilised 37,092 14,732
Amount utilised 21,863 23,568
58,955 38,300

Assets Pledged as Security for Borrowings

The banking facilities are secured by a security interest granted by the Group over all of their assets in favour of
HSBC as well as cross guarantees and indemnities between the Group members.
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15

16

Lease liability
Maturity analysis:
Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Onwards

Less: interest payable

Analysed as:

Current

Non-current

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored

within the Group’s treasury function.

Other Financial Liabilities
CURRENT
Forward exchange contracts

Deferred consideration’

NON-CURRENT
Deferred consideration’

Total Other Financial Liabilities

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
5,000 4,814
3,968 5,050
2,766 3,538
2,819 2,361
1,751 2,442

237 1,442

16,541 19,647

(1,239) (1,707)

15,302 17,940
4,467 4,306

10,835 13,634

15,302 17,940

176 49
575 641
751 690

- 575
751 1,265

" Deferred consideration balances relate to acquisition of Cotters Patent and Trademark Attorneys, which occurred on in

the prior year.
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17 Deferred Income Tax

Opening Recognised in Transfer from Business Closing
Balance Profit or Loss adoption of Acquisition Balance
2020 AASB 16 Leases
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Deferred Tax Asset
Black hole expenses 1,454 (576) - - 878
Trade payables 884 (142) - - 742
Provisions 3,395 134 (742) - 2,787
Lease liability - 5,382 - - 5,382
Unused tax losses - 218 - - 218
5,733 5,016 (742) - 10,007
Deferred Tax Liability
Trade receivables (125) 82 - - (43)
Other assets (102) (141) - - (243)
Property, plant and equipment (33) 72 - - 39
Right-of-use asset - (5,474) 742 - (4,732)
Intangible assets (6,550) 280 - (1,233) (7,503)
Trade payables (38) 40 - - 2
(6,848) (5,141) 742 (1,233) (12,480)
Net deferred tax (1,115) (125) - (1,233) (2,473)
Opening Recognised in Transfer from Business Closing
Balance Profit or Loss adoption of Acquisition Balance
2021 AASB 16 Leases
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Deferred Tax Asset
Black hole expenses 878 (845) - - 33
Trade payables 742 (750) - - (8)
Provisions 2,787 1,068 - - 3,855
Lease liability 5,382 (710) - - 4,672
Unused tax losses 218 174 - - 392
10,007 (1,063) - - 8,944
Deferred Tax Liability
Trade receivables (43) (65) - - (108)
Other assets (243) (148) - - (95)
Property, plant and equipment 39 10 - - 49
Right-of-use asset (4,732) 581 - - (4,151)
Intangible assets (7,503) 310 - - (7,193)
Trade payables 2 (2) - - -
(12,480) 982 - - (11,498)
Net deferred tax (2,473) (81) - - (2,554)
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18 Issued Capital

2021 2020

$°000 $°000

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares 297,408 295,510

(a) Ordinary Shares

2021 2020

No. No.

At the beginning of the reporting period 134,298,552 133,050,724
Shares issued during the year:

Issued to employee share trust 1,348,539 -

Issue for business acquisition 334,784 1,247,828

Issued to employee share schemes 78,089 -

At the end of the reporting period 136,059,964 134,298,552

(b)

(c)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
Company. At meetings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in person or by proxy, and
upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote. The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in
respect of its shares.

Employee Share Schemes

78,089 employee shares were issued in the current year due to the exercise of employee performance rights.
1,348,539 employee shares were issued to the employee share trust.

Capital Management

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maintain a sustainable debt to equity ratio, generate
long-term shareholder value and ensure that the Group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

The Group’s debt and capital include ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.
Other than its banking covenants, the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjusting its
capital structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses include the
management of debt levels, distributions to shareholders and share issues. There have been no changes in the
strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group.
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19 Reserves

Share

based payment reserve

Opening balance

Recog

nition of share-based payments (performance rights) 22

Transfer from Share based payment reserve on exercise of retention rights

19(a)

Reorganisation reserve 19(b)

Acquisition reserve

Opening balance

Deferred share consideration for Cotters acquisition transferred to issued

capital

Deferred share consideration for Cotters acquisition

19(c)

Foreign currency translation reserve

Opening balance

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

19(d)

Total reserves

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Share Based Payment Reserve

IP

2021 2020
$°000 $°000

26 -

346 26
(100) -
272 26
(222,856) (222,856)
655 -
(385) -

- 655

270 655
(103) -

21 (103)

(82) (103)
(222,356) (222,278)

The share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity benefits provided to employees and

directors as part of their remuneration, and other parties as part of their compensation for services.

Reorganisation reserve

As described in Note 1(a), the restructure has been accounted for using the net carrying values of the DCC
partnership prior to the reorganisation. The difference between the fair value of shares issued (based on market
value) and the carrying values of net assets acquired has been recognised in the reorganisation reserve.

Acquisition reserve

Represents the share issue portion of the deferred consideration of the acquisition of Cotters during the year.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations with functional currencies other than Australian
dollars are recognised in other comprehensive income and included in the foreign currency translation reserve in

the statement of financial position.
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20 Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid: 2021
$°000
Interim Dividend — fully franked ordinary
3.3 cents paid 26 March 2020 -
4.0 cents paid 31 March 2021 5,426
Final Dividend — fully franked ordinary
3.8 cents paid 1 October 2020 5,103

21

2020
$’000

4,391

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2021, the directors resolved to pay a fully franked final dividend of 3.4 cents per
share. The record date will be 2 September 2021. As such the dividend has not been included as a liability in these
financial statements. The total dividend to be paid is $4.6 million. There are no income tax consequences arising from

this dividend at 30 June 2021.

Franking account

The franking credits available for subsequent financial years at a tax rate of 30% 4,900 5,249
The ability to use the franking credits is dependent upon the Company’s future ability to declare dividends.
Earnings Per Share
The calculation of Statutory EPS is presented below:
2021 2020
cents per cents per
share share
Total basic earnings per share 7.7 7.18
Total diluted earnings per share 7.68 717
(a) Reconciliation of Earnings Used in Calculating Earnings Per Share
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Profit for the period attributable to Parent entity 10,473 9,563
(b) Earnings Used to Calculate Overall Earnings Per Share
Earnings used to calculate overall earnings per share 10,473 9,563
(c) Weighted Average Number of Shares Used as the Denominator in Calculation of Earnings Per Share
2021 2020
No. No.
Opening 134,298,552 133,050,724
Cotter’s shares issued - 132,965
EST shares issued 927,351 -
Performance rights issued 20,752 -
Cotter’s shares deferred 669,568 59,148
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic
earnings per share 135,916,224 133,242,838
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
- Performance rights 473,291 136,244
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
used in calculating dilutive EPS 136,389,515 133,379,081
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22 Share-Based Payments

Executive performance rights

On 23 June 2020, the Group issued 295,050 performance rights to the CEO Craig Dower. During the current financial
year the Group issued a further 381,593 performance rights to three group executives. The expected life of the
performance rights is 36 months. Vesting of the performance rights will be subject to reasonable satisfaction of
performance conditions to be determined by the QANTM Board, and vesting will occur in instalments on the following
timetable:

(i) 20% after one year;

(i) 30% after two years; and

(iii) 50% after three years.

The fair value of the performance rights at valuation date is $800,000.

Movements during the year

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average|
Number Exercise Number Exercise
Price Price
$ $
Performance rights outstanding as at 1 July 295,050 - - -
Granted during the year 381,593 - 295,050 -
Vested during the year (78,089) - - -
Performance rights outstanding as at 30 June 598,554 - 295,050 -
Performance rights exercisable as at 30 June - - 8

Employee Share Trust (EST)

The company has established an employee share trust (EST) for the benefit of key employees. The EST is intended to
provide an incentive for participating employees to maximise their contributions to the Company and to enable them to
share in the future growth in the value of the Company.

Under the EST, selected key employees, nominated by the Company will be provided with an opportunity to acquire a
beneficial interest in fully paid QANTM shares (through the EST). Contributions are paid by QANTM to the EST, which
will use those funds to effect an acquisition of QANTM shares for the benefit of the relevant employee under the terms of
the EST. The shares will generally be acquired on market by the trustee of the EST (which is not a member of the QANTM
Group), but may be issued by QANTM to the trustee of the EST. The employee will not be able to effect a sale of the
shares whilst they are in the EST.

LTI program performance rights

The Performance Rights are described in Appendix 4G from the 2021 LTI program for the QANTM Group Executives.
The Performance Rights vest after 3 years subject to achievement of a performance hurdle (a compound annual growth
rate of between 5% and 15% in earnings per share) The Performance Rights are issued under the Company’s
Employee Incentive Plan, a description of which included in the 2019 Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 25
October 2019.
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22 Share-Based Payments (continued)

23

LTI program performance rights (continued)

Movements during the year

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted

Average Average)

Number Exercise Number Exercise)

Price Price

$ $

Performance rights outstanding as at 1 July - - - -

Granted during the year 397,600 - - -

Performance rights outstanding as at 30 June 397,600 - - -

Performance rights exercisable as at 30 June - - - .
The Group had the following share-based payment expense

2021 2020

$'000 $'000

$ $

Share based payment expense recognised during the year 346 26

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date using the Black-Scholes pricing model, taking into the account the terms and conditions upon which the options
where granted.

Financial Risk Management
Objectives, Policies and Processes

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (including foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group
uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis
in the case of interest rate and foreign exchange and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk management requires the Group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash equivalents) and
available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by
continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group may obtain payment in advance or restrict the services offered where appropriate to mitigate credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, as
disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The Group does not have any
material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors and does not hold any collateral.
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23 Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

A substantial portion of the Group's revenues and cash flows are generated in USD. The majority of the Group's key
expenses, including rent and wages, are payable in AUD. Accordingly, any appreciation of the AUD against the USD as
well as other adverse exchange rate movements, could have an adverse effect on the Company's future financial
performance and position. If the AUD appreciates against the USD, the Group's cash receipts in AUD could be lower
which could result in a lower net profit for the Group. In addition, the Group has a USD loan facility to mitigate the impact
of its USD receivables.

The Group has historically used hedging to reduce the impact of currency movements in USD denominated invoices
between the time of invoicing and receipt of payment. The Group has entered into hedging where appropriate to set or
cap the USD to AUD conversion rate.

The Group's net asset exposure in AUD at reporting date was as follows:

AUD uUsD
$°000 $°000
30 June 2020
Asset exposure 15,918 13,467
Liabilities exposure (3,272) (1,940)
Net exposure 12,646 11,527
30 June 2021
Asset exposure 16,999 12,757
Liabilities exposure (3,599) (2,678)
Net exposure 13,400 (10,079)
Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s Australian dollar denominated profit and loss statement to foreign currency movements:

2021 NPAT
Increase / (Decrease) 2021 EBITDA impact impact
000's 000's
$ $
Change in AUD/USD exchange rate 1 cents / (1 cents) 600 / (600) 420/ (420)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from its borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group does not
enter into any derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk management requires the Group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash equivalents) and
available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by
continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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23 Financial Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

At the reporting date, the Group had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

Bank loans

Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk

Maturity of notional amounts

1to 2 years

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
average average
interest rate Balance interest rate Balance
% $'000 % $'000
1.70 21,818 1.87% 23,568
21,818 23,568
Effective
Average
Fixed Interest
Rate Payable Notional Principal
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % $'000 $'000
1.70 1.87 21,818 23,568

The following tables detail the Group's assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, using a three level
hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being:

Level 1
measurement date.
Level 2
directly or indirectly.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

The Board considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair value. The table below shows the assigned level for each asset and liability held at fair

value by the Group:

30 June 2020
Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts 16

Note

Total liabilities

30 June 2021
Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts 16

Total liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $
- 49 - 49
- 49 - 49
- 176 - 176
- 176 - 176

There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.
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25

IP

Fair Value Measurement
Forward Exchange Contracts

Valuation Techniques and Key Inputs

Discounted cash flow method is used - future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Parent Entity

Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity.

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Statement of Financial Position
Current assets 1,204 2,585
Total Assets 110,781 95,201
Current liabilities 816 1,253
Total Liabilities 22,680 9,266
Equity
Issued capital 94,532 93,244
Reserves 1,099 26
Accumulated losses (7,530) (7,335)
Total Equity 88,101 85,935
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Total profit or loss for the year 11,078 10,930
Total comprehensive income 11,078 10,930

Guarantees

The parent entity has entered into a Deed of Cross-Guarantee with the effect that the Company guarantees debts in
respect of certain of its subsidiaries and those subsidiaries guarantee the debts of the parent entity.

Further details of the Deed of Cross-Guarantee and the entities subject to the deed are disclosed in Note 27.
Contingent Liabilities

At 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, bank guarantees in respect of property leases were maintained.

Further details of the contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 31.

Contractual Commitments

The parent entity does not have any material contractual commitments as at 30 June 2021 or 30 June 2020.
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26 Interests in Subsidiaries

Composition of the Group

Principal place of Percentage Percentage
business / Country of Owned (%)! Owned (%)’
Incorporation 2021 2020
Subsidiaries:
Advanz Fidelis IP Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Davies Collison Cave Pty Ltd? Australia 100 100
Davies Collison Cave Law Pty Ltd? Australia 100 100
Davies Collison Cave Asia Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100
Davies Collison Cave NZ Ltd New Zealand 100 100
FPA Patent Attorneys Pty Ltd? Australia 100 100
FPA Patent Attorneys Asia Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100
ipervescence Pty Ltd Australia 51 51
QIP Services Pty Ltd? Australia 100 100
QIP Nominees Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys? Australia 100 100

27 Deed of Cross-Guarantee

The members of the Group party to the deed of cross guarantee are detailed in Note 26. The consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position of the entities party to the
deed of cross guarantee are:

2021 2020

$°000 $°000
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Service charges 86,851 84,441
Associate charges 24,631 24,787
Total revenue 111,482 109,228
Other income 1,661 1,138
Employee benefits expense (53,938) (52,792)
Recoverable expenses (23,282) (23,213)
Occupancy expenses (1,377) (1,315)
Business Acquisition costs (379) (1,379)
Other expenses (11,648) (10,500)
Earnings before depreciation and amortisation, finance costs and income tax 22,519 21,167
Depreciation and amortisation (7,057) (6,583)
Earnings before finance costs and income tax 15,462 14,584
Finance costs (1,610) (1,534)
Profit before income tax 13,852 13,050
Income tax expense (4,384) (4,704)
Net profit for the year 9,468 8,346
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,468 8,346

" The percentage of ownership interest held is equivalent to the percentage voting rights for all subsidiaries
2 Members of the cross guarantee group. Refer to Note 27

92 QANTM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LIMITED



27 Deed of Cross-Guarantee (continued)

Statement of Financial Position
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

Other assets

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Intangible assets

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Borrowings

Lease liability

Other financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

Borrowings

Lease liability

Other financial liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Equity

Issued Capital
Reserves
Retained Earnings

Total Equity

IP

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
4,247 4,986

34,251 30,938
47 -
4,012 4,339
42,981 40,263
2,071 2,178
12,938 15,434
74,617 75,530
89,626 93,142
132,607 133,405
12,394 10,297
8,028 6,093
1,995 2,447
4,482 4,306
751 690

- 859
27,650 24,692
12 289
19,868 21,036
10,539 13,321
- 575

3,174 2,434
33,593 37,655
61,243 62,347
71,364 70,158
297,260 295,964
(222,991) (222,540)
(2,905) (2,366)
71,364 71,058
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28 Business Combination
Acquisition of Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys
In the prior period, the Company acquired Cotters Patent and Trade Mark Attorneys for a total purchase consideration of
$5.35 million payable in instalments over two years. 35% of the each of the three instalments is payable by way of the

issue of QANTM shares.

The Company has paid the first deferred instalment of $1.1 million compromising $715,000 cash and $385,000 in shares.
The prior year instalment was $2.665 million in cash and $1.435 million in shares.

The purchase price accounting involves judgment and complexity in the purchase price allocation, including determining
the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities. The fair value of below numbers are final and there will be no changes.

Details of the business combination are set out below:

$°000
Cash consideration 3,256
Shares 2,091
Total consideration 5,347
Recognised amounts of identifiable net assets:
Assets
Trade and other receivables 535
Prepayments 23
Fixed assets 16
Right-of-use asset 428
Intangibles 4,230
Total Assets 5,232
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 169
Other current liabilities 178
Borrowings 818
Lease liability 428
Provisions 16
Deferred Tax Liability 1,233
Total Liabilities 2,842
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 2,390
Goodwill 2,957

29 Related Parties
Parent entity
QANTM Intellectual Property Limited.
Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 26.
Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in Note 30 and the remuneration report in the Directors'
Report.
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30 Key Management Personnel Disclosures

Key management personnel (Directors and Executive Officers) remuneration included within employee expenses for
the year is shown below:

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Short-term employee benefits 2,100 5,026
Post-employment benefits 43 138
Other long-term benefits 17 50
Total KMP compensation 2,160 5,214
31 Contingent Liabilities
Estimates of material amounts of contingent liabilities, not provided for in the
financial report:
Bank guarantees in respect of property leases 3,846 2,201
32 Cash Flow Information
(a) Reconciliation of Result for the Year to Cash Flows from Operating Activities
2021 2020
$°000 $°000

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Profit for the year after income tax 10,385 9,377
Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities

Non-cash flows in profit:

- Depreciation and amortisation 7,295 6,760
- Share based payments 246 26
- Bad debt expense 303 701
- Interest expense on lease liabilities 677 766

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase and disposal of

subsidiaries:
- increase in trade and other receivables (3,208) (1,810)
- increase in other assets (203) (228)
- increase in trade and other payables 3,831 2,293
- increase/(decrease) in provisions 1,380 (1,839)
- decrease in income tax payable (1,248) (1,162)
- increase in deferred tax balances 368 200

Cash flow from operations 19,826 15,084

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 95



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

32 Cash Flow Information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

1July 2020 Cash flows Fairvalue Acquisition Other 30 June
$'000 $'000 changes $'000 $°000 2021
$'000 $'000
Bank loans 23,568 (1,750) - - - 21,818
Lease liabilities 17,940 (5,200) - - 2,562 15,302
Total liabilities from
financing activities 41,508 (6,950) - - 2,562 37,120
2021 2020
$ $
33 Auditors' Remuneration
Deloitte and related network firms
Audit or review of financial reports:
- Group 192,400 184,100
192,400 184,100
Other auditors and their related network firms
Audit or review of financial reports:
- Subsidiaries 89,104 43,545
- Accounting services 15,509 18,409
104,613 61,954

34 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

There were no significant events post 30 June 2021 that have impacted the Group.

35 Company Details
The registered office of the Company is:

QANTM Intellectual Property Limited
Level 15

1 Nicholson Street

Melbourne VIC 3002
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The directors of the Company declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 June 2021 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and:

a. comply with Accounting Standards, which, as stated in Basis of Preparation in the Notes to the Financial
Statements, constitutes explicit and unreserved compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS); and

b. give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the consolidated group;

2. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have given the declarations required by Section 295A that:

a. the financial records of the Company for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with
section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001,

b. the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and
c. the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view.
3. in the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that:

a. the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable;

b. The Company and the companies to which the ASIC Corporations Instrument applies, as detailed in note 27 to
the financial statements, will as a group, be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may,
become, subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

/7 y
7 5

Chairman: ........ooocoiiiee e
Richard England

Dated this 26th day of August 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

]
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e o I e. ABN 74 490 121 060
477 Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC, 3000

Australia

Phone: +61 3 9671 7000
www.deloitte.com.au

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited (the “Company” ) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i Giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and
ii. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board’s APES
110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to
our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the
directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of

the financial report for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.
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Key Audit Matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the Key Audit Matter

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible
assets —impairment assessment

Refer to Note 11.

As at 30 June 2021 the Group’s carrying value
of goodwill and intangible assets totals $74.7
million, of which $2.9 million relates to the
Cotters cash generating unit (“CGU”).
Significant judgement is exercised in
determining the assumptions and estimates
involved in preparing the Cotters Value in Use
(“ViU”) valuation model including:
e  Forecasts of revenue and Earnings
before Interest and Tax (“EBIT”) for
the years 2022 to 2026;
e long-term growth rate applied within
the ViU valuation model; and
e Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(“WACC”) rate utilised within the ViU
valuation model.
L]
Management has applied judgement to
determine their best estimate for assumptions
within the ViU valuation model, including
internal and external data as inputs, and
factored into their assumptions any continued
anticipated challenges associated with COVID-
19 and its result on the cash flows of the
Cotters CGU.

The ViU valuation model is sensitive to
changes in assumptions and estimates used
within the ViU valuation model.

In conjunction with our valuation specialists, our procedures
included, but were not limited to:

Obtaining an understanding of the control
implemented to address the risk relevant to the
accuracy of key assumptions within the ViU valuation
model;

Assessing the objectivity and competence of the
external valuation specialist used by management;
Evaluating management’s methodology used to
assess the Cotters CGU for impairment;

Challenging key assumptions including: forecast
growth rates by comparing them to results achieved
post the commencement of the COVID-19 virus,
business trends, economic and industry forecasts and
comparable organisations;

Assessing the consistency of the cash flows used with
the latest Board approved budget for Cotters and
assessing the historical accuracy of forecasting by
Cotters management;

Evaluating the discount rate used by assessing the
cost of capital for the Cotters CGU and comparable
organisations by comparison to market data and
industry research;

Testing on a sample basis, the mathematical accuracy
of the cash flow model;

Assessing management’s sensitivity analyses on the
impairment model using varied discount rates, short-
term growth projections as well as long-term growth
forecasts to simulate alternative market conditions;
and

Assessing the appropriateness of the disclosure
presented within the financial statements in relation
to the sensitivity of the ViU valuation model to
changes within the key assumptions.

Other Information

IP

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report,
Investor Presentation, ASX announcement and Additional Information for Listed Public Companies, which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and also includes the following information which have been
included in the Group’s annual report (but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon):
the QANTM Group, 2021 Year in Review, Chairman and CEO Report, 2021 Business Review, People and Culture,
Board of Directors, Group Executive, and Five-Year Financial Summary, which were made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read the QANTM Group, 2021 Year in Review, Chairman and CEO Report, 2021 Business Review, People
and Culture, Board of Directors, Group Executive, and Five-Year Financial Summary, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors and use our professional
judgement to determine the appropriate action.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group] to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on the Remuneration Report
Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 38 to 46 of the Directors’ Report for the year ended
30 June 2021.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of QANTM Intellectual Property Limited, for the year ended 30 June
2021, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Rk Soppe Toeta Totoemmd—

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

2/ A—
Chris Biermann
Partner

Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, 26 August 2021

IP
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Additional information required under ASX Listing Rule 4.10 and not shown elsewhere in this Annual Report is as follows.
This information is current as at 11 August 2021.

In accordance with ASX listing rule 4.10.19 the Company confirms that it has used the cash and assets in a form readily
convertible to cash that it had at the time of admission to the ASX in a way consistent with its business objectives.

The distribution of issued capital is as follows:

Size of Holding Sh:zmzz;’; Ordinary Shares % Ofés:‘:'i:adl
100,001 and Over 112 115,909,199 85.19%
10,001 to 100,000 526 16,295,482 11.98%
5,001 to 10,000 278 2,316,183 1.70%
1,001 to 5,000 428 1,315,812 0.97%
1 to 1,000 436 223,288 0.16%
Total 1,780 136,059,964 100.00%

Less than marketable parcels of ordinary shares
There are 64 shareholders with unmarketable parcels totalling 7,538 shares.
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20 Largest Shareholders

The twenty largest shareholders of quoted equity securities as at 11 August 2021 are as follows:

Number of
fully paid % of issued
Ordinary Capital
Shares

1 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 27,472,189 20.46%
2 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 6,685,219 4.91%
3 SMARTEQUITY EIS PTY LTD 5,370,590 3.95%
4 ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED 4,900,053 3.60%
5 NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 3,997,291 2.94%
6 JOHN DOWER 2,888,884 2.12%
7 H CUNNOLD PTY LTD 2,735,000 2.01%
8 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 2,546,167 1.87%
9 CURPSI PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 FORDHAM PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 GNARWARRE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 LOUGHNAN HILL PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 MACROPHAGE PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 OAKVALE PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 PETROB HOLDINGS PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 REZINLOW HOLDINGS PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 ROCKY ROAD PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 SYBARITE PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 TSAR INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
9 WOODCASTLE PTY LTD 2,037,226 1.50%
Totals 69,376,851 50.99%

Total Remaining Holders Balance 66,683,113 49.01%
Total Quoted Equity Securities 136,059,964 100.00%

Unquoted Equity Securities

During the current financial year the Group issued 381,593 performance rights to three group executives. Details of
timing and conditions for vesting are detailed in note 22.

IP
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 11 August 2021, the names of the substantial holders of the Company and the number of equity securities in
which those substantial holders and their associates have a relevant interest, as disclosed in substantial holding
notices given to the Company, are as follows:

Shareholder

ICE Investors

Restricted Securities

Number of
Ordinary
Fully Paid
Shares

7,253,977

The Company had the following restricted securities on issue as at 11 August 2021:

Class
Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares
Total Escrowed Shares

Voting Rights

Number of
Type of Restriction Securities % of issued capital
Voluntary Escrow 1,247,828 0.917%
Voluntary Escrow 334,784 0.253%
1,582,612 1.163%

% of
Issued
Capital

5.33%

End Date of
Escrow Period

22 May 22
24 May 22

In accordance with the Constitution each member present at a meeting whether in person, or by proxy, or by power of
attorney, or in a duly authorised representative in the case of a corporate member, shall have one vote on a show of
hands, and one vote for each fully paid ordinary share, on a poll.

Performance rights have no voting rights.

On-Market Buy-Backs

There is no current on-market buy-back in relation to the Company's securities.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY*?
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FY21 FY20 FY19 FY18 FY17
Summary Financials (Sm)
Service charges revenue 924 90.3 86.5 76.5 804
Associate charges revenue? 267 26.3 257 25.2 22.8
Total Revenue 1191 116.6 112.2 1017 103.2
gf;:\iitcsrer\llsqzjs recoverable expenses) 956 940 903 804 833
Operating expenses 684 66.1 671 611 617
EBITDA pre FX 272 279 232 193 236
EBITDA after FX 26.1 271 24.0 20.1 24.5
Depreciation and amortisation 73 6.8 2.2 2.1 2.0
Group EBIT 18.8 20.3 21.8 18.0 22.5
Net interest costs and bank charges 16 15 10 0.8 0.9
Profit before tax 172 18.8 20.8 172 216
Tax expense 50 53 6.0 53 6.7
Net Profit after Tax 12.2 13.5 14.8 119 14.8
Operating Cash Flow 198 15.1 14.6 113 213
Net debt 16.2 174 111 83 74
Capital and Dividends
Ordinary shares on issue 136,059,964 134,298,552 133,050,724 132,904,331 132,900,281
Dividends per share for year (cents) 74 71 83 71 89
Franking level (per cent) 100 100 100 100 100
Opening share price ($) 118 142 1.05 1.27 000
Closing share price ($) 115 118 142 105 127
Financial Ratios
EBITDA/Total revenue (per cent) 219 232 214 19.8 237
EBITDA/Service charges revenue (per cent) 28.2 30.0 277 26.3 30.5
iir;;eersest cover (EBITDA/net interest expense) 163 180 567 551 545
Basic earnings per share (cents) 771 718 842 715 54
Return on equity — statutory (per cent) 14.2 13.2 15.9 13.6 10.2
Return on equity — underlying (per cent) 167 18.9 21.0 171 20.9
Gearing (net debt/net debt + equity) (per cent) 18.1 196 13.6 10.6 94
Financial Position as at 30 June (Sm)
Total assets 135.0 1354 107.0 104.8 108.8
Total liabilities 62.2 64.3 36.4 35.1 379
Net assets / shareholders’ equity 72.8 71.2 70.6 69.7 70.9

1. The above reflects underlying results to facilitate comparisons period to period. A reconciliation of statutory to underlying results for FY21 is
included in Note 5 of the Directors’ Report. The Financial Summary Table reflects adoption of AASB16 Leases for FY20 and FY21, and due to the
updates made to the FY20 figures they will not tie to those which were disclosed in the "Four-Year Financial Summary” as per the FY20 annual

report. The FY17-FY19 remain as stated pre AASB16.

2. Associate charges relate to revenue from recharging the cost of foreign agents that lodge applications in countries outside those in which QANTM

acts; the revenue is offset by recoverable expenses as detailed

QANTM ANNUAL REPORT 2021 105



CORPORATE DIRECTORY

COMPANY DETAILS

QANTM Intellectual Property Limited

ACN: 612 441 326
ASX: QIP

REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 15, 1 Nicholson Street
Melbourne VIC 3002
Australia

Telephone: +61 3 9254 2666

Email: info@gantmip.com

SHARE REGISTRY SERVICES

Shareholders who require information about

their shareholdings, dividend payments or related
administrative matters should contact the company’s
share registry.

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
452 Johnston Street

Abbotsford VIC 3001

Telephone from within Australia: 1300 850 505
Telephone from outside Australia: +61 3 9415 4000

Each enquiry should refer to the shareholder number

which is shown on issuer-sponsored holding statements

POSTAL ADDRESS and dividend statements.
GPO Box 4387
o AUDITOR
Melbourne VIC 3001 )
Deloitte
477 Collins Street
DIRECTO RS Melbourne VIC 3000

Richard England, Non-executive Chairman

SOLICITOR

Craig Dower, CEO and Managing Director ) )
MinterEllison

Leon Allen, Non-executive Director .
Level 23, Rialto Towers

Sonia Petering, Non-executive Director )
525 Collins Street

COMPANY SECRETARY Melbourne VIC 3000

Nick Ward, General Counsel and Company Secretary

WEBSITE

www.gantmip.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

QANTM's Annual General Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Tuesday, 30 November 2021 at 10:00am Australian
Eastern Daylight Time and will be held as a virtual meeting via electronic means.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Corporate Governance Statement, as at 22 October 2021, has been approved by the Board and is available for review
on the Company's website (www.gantmip.com)
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€ € The continual investment in our people and culture

e
AARON YATES
LLB (Hons), BSc, GDLI
Principal Lawyer
DCC, Melbourne

DR HUMPHREY FOOTE
BSc (Hons), PhD

Principal, Patent Attorney
DCC, New Zealand

Associate Principal}
FPA, Melbourne

MADELEINE CHAN
BCom, LLB (Hons)

Senior Trade Mark Counsel,

Trade Mark Attorney
DCC, Melbourne

is at the heart of all that we do. The QANTM Group,
though its separate business entities, seeks to attract
and retain the very best people in the industry. 29

LIM PUI KEONG

LLB (Hons)

Dept Head - Trade Marks
Advanz Fidelis, KL

CLAIRE FOGGO

LLB, BA

Chief Executive Officej
Sortify.TM Ltd, NZ

STANLEY HANITIO
Financial Accountant
FPA, Melbourne

Aokl
REBECCAICHAPMAN
Executive Assistant
FPA, Sydney

ERIN CASSIDY
BA, LLB, GDLP
Trade Mark Attorne:
Cotters, Sydney

CARLA FABRIS
Patent Administrator
FPA, Melbourne

SHEILA BARBERO

BS (Hons), PAD, MIP Law
Associate

FPA, Melbourne

JASMIN TAYLOR
BA-BCMS, MIPL
Trade Mark Attorney
Cotters, Sydney

&=/
-

COURTNEY WHITE

LLB (Hons), DipLegPrac, BCS
Lawyer

DCC, Sydney

DR SIMONEY
BBiotech (Hons), PhD} '
Senior Associate, Paténti
Attorney DCC, Brisbanesi

AEISTER MCEGOWAN
BEng (Hons), LLB
Senior Associaté

FPA, Sydney

-
CATH ERI‘NE CORISH
Prince2 .

Group Applications Manager
QANTM, Melbourne

e
ESTHER SEOW

LLB

Principal, Trade Mark
Attorney DCC, Singapore

SUSAN DE MEDICI

MBA, GradDip BusAdmin, BSW*
Organisational Change Manager
QANTM, Brisbane

WING HANG FOONG
BSc Medical Science
Division Head Patents
Advanz Fidelis, KL

BA, LLB, LLM

Managing Principal, Bawyer
DCC, Melbourne .
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ROHAN WILLIAMS
BSc (Hons), PhD
Patent Scientist
FPA, Melbourne

HAKIM AZMAN

BSc Physics and Electronics
Senior Consulant — Patents
Advanz Fidelis, KL

A
SINDHU PRABHAKARA

Assistant
FPA, Singapore

JANE LEONG
Senior Consultant — Trade'Marks
Advanz Fidelis, KL
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